
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda and Reports  
 

For consideration on  
 
 

Wednesday, 10th January 
2007 

 
 

In the Committee Room 1,Town Hall, Chorley 

 

At 6.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC QUESTIONS/SPEAKING AT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
MEETINGS 
 

• Questions must be submitted to the Democratic Services Section by no later than midday, 
two working days before the day of the meeting to allow time to prepare appropriate 
responses and investigate issues if necessary. 

• A maximum period of 3 minutes will be allowed for a question from a member of the public 
on an item on the agenda.  A maximum period of 30 minutes to be allocated for public 
questions if necessary at each meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and its 
appropriate panels.  This will provide an opportunity for members of the public to raise and 
ask questions on any issue falling within the remit of the Committee or Panel. 

 



Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Gordon Bankes 
Direct Dial: (01257) 515123 
E-mail address: gordon.bankes@chorley.gov.uk 
Date:  1 January 2007 

Chief Executive:  Donna Hall 

 
 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 10TH 
JANUARY 2007 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held in the 
Committee Room, Town Hall, Chorley on Wednesday, 10th January 2007 commencing at 6.30 
pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies for absence   

 
 2. Declarations of any interests   

 
  Members of the Committee are reminded of their responsibilities to declare any 

personal interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda in accordance with the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the council’s Constitution and the 
Members Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, then the 
individual member should not participate in the discussion on the matter and must 
withdraw from the room and not seek to influence a decision on the matter. 
 
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 4 December 2006 (enclosed) 
 

 4. Executive Cabinet - 11 January 2007   
 

  To consider any reports on the agenda for the Executive Cabinet meeting to be held 
on 11 January 2007 which are not already on the agenda. The Executive Cabinet 
agenda will be circulated to all Members of the Committee. Please bring your copy to 
the meeting.  
 
Members of the Committee are requested to notify the Democratic Services Section 
by 10.00am on Monday 8 January 2007, to ensure the attendance of the appropriate 
Executive Member and officers.  
 

 5. Forward Plan   
 

  To receive and consider the Council’s Forward Plan for the four months period from 1 
January 2007 to 30 April 2007 (copy enclosed). 
 

Town Hall 
Market Street 

Chorley 
Lancashire 

PR7 1DP 



 6. Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Strategy  (Pages 7 - 62) 
 

  Report of Director of ICT Services (enclosed) 
 

 7. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Inquiry   
 

  To receive a presentation by the Council’s Relationships Manager (Audit Commission) 
Mr Mike Thomas. 
The presentation is to gain background information in connection with the Committees 
ongoing inquiry into the Council’s performance against the key lines of inquiry to be 
assessed by the Audit Commission during the CPA and the Direction of Travel. 
 
At the last meeting of the Committee, two Sub-Groups were established and below are 
the dates for when they will meet 
. 
Equality and Diversity Sub-Group 
Monday 29 January 2007 
Thursday 15 February 2007 
Thursday 1 March 2007 
 
Capacity /Achievement Sub-Group 
Wednesday 31 January 2007 
Monday 26 February 2007 
Thursday 8 March 2007   
 
  
 

 8. Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan - Update  (Pages 63 - 72) 
 

  Copy of the updated Plan enclosed 
 
 
 
 

 9. Lancashire Care NHS Trust - NHS Foundation Trust Consultation   
 

  The Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel at its meeting on 30 
November 2006 received a presentation from a representative of the Lancashire Care 
NHS Trust on their wish to become a NHS Foundation Trust. 
It was explained that the plans and the improvements the Trust required, would deliver 
even better mental health and substance misuse services to the people of Lancashire. 
As part of the consultation process the Trust was required to consult with 
stakeholders. The Council’s comments on the proposals were welcomed so that they 
could be incorporated in their plans for the future. 
Attached is the consultation document compiled by the Lancashire Care NHS Trust for 
information. 
The Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel welcomed the 
proposals for the Lancashire Care NHS Trust on their wish to become a NHS 
Foundation Trust, however the Panel requested that Chorley Borough Council 
receives a fair share of representation on the Council of Governors. 
The Committee is requested to endorse the views of the Environment and Community 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel.    
 

 10. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme (enclosed)  (Pages 73 - 76) 
 

 11. Any other item(s) the Chair decides is/are urgent   
 

 
 



Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Councillor 

Dennis Edgerley (Chair), Councillors Thomas McGowan, Kenneth Ball, Thomas Bedford, 
Terry Brown, Francis Culshaw, Mrs Marie Gray, Harold Heaton, Greg Morgan, 
Geoffrey Russell, Mrs Iris Smith and Christopher Snow) and for attendance. 

 
2. Agenda and reports to Donna Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director of Policy 

and Performance), Tim Murphy (Director of Information and Communication Technology), 
Steve Pearce (Assistant Head of Democratic Services) and Gordon Bankes (Democratic 
Services Officer) for attendance. 

 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

 

 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



This page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 4 December 2006 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Monday, 4 December 2006 
 

Present: Councillor Dennis Edgerley (Chair), Councillors Thomas McGowan, Kenneth Ball, 
Terry Brown, Francis Culshaw, Mrs Marie Gray, Harold Heaton, Geoffrey Russell, Mrs Iris Smith 
and Christopher Snow 
 

 
 

06.OS.63 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Greg Morgan. 
 

06.OS.64 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS  
 
None of the Members declared any interests in relation to matters under consideration 
at the meeting. 
 

06.OS.65 MINUTES  
 
The Committee considered the Minutes of the previous meeting. 
 
The Chair informed Members that the Council’s Relationship Manager (Audit 
Commission) will be attending the next meeting on 10 January 2007 (Minute 06.0S.48 
refers). 
 
The Chair also notified Members that a report on Concessionary Travel (Minute 
06.0S.4 refers) requested by the Committee was on the agenda for this meeting and 
would be considered as part of the Revenue Budget, 2006/07 – Monitoring. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
8 November 2006 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

06.OS.66 EXECUTIVE CABINET - 7 DECEMBER 2006  
 
No other reports on the agenda for the Executive Cabinet meeting on 7 December 
2006 were considered for discussion. 
 

06.OS.67 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT - SECOND QUARTER  
 
The Director of Policy and Performance submitted a monitoring report on the 
Authority’s performance in relation to both the Best Value Performance Indicators and 
the Council’s Corporate Key Performance Indicators during the second quarter period 
from April 2006 to September 2006. 
 
The report indicated the full list of Best Value Performance Indicators that are relevant 
to this Council and which are collected in accordance with definitions issued by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government. 
 
The report indicated that the 44 key projects which contribute to the achievement of 
the Council’s six strategic objectives had shown an overall performance in the first two 
quarters to be excellent, with 79% of projects either completed, progressing ahead of 
plan or on plan. 
 
Out of the 44 key projects only one was rated ‘red’ which was behind plan, due to an 
issue out of the Council’s control. 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 4 December 2006 

Overall the performance of key projects at the end of the second quarter appeared to 
be good with the majority of projects performing as planned. 
 
In the area of the BVPI, information collected in the second quarter of 2006/07 
indicated the performance to be positive.  In those areas where targets had been 
missed by more than 5% at this stage in the financial year, action plans had been 
introduced to bring more improvement. 
 
The report indicated that the organisation continued to perform well with service 
performance levels remaining high and the Council maintained in a good quartile 
position. 
 
Members raised the issue of the percentage of major applications determined within 
timescale.  There had been a number of complex applications which had impacted 
upon the capacity of the Development and Regeneration Directorate to process 
applications and had resulted in target dates not being achieved.  The performance of 
this Best Value Performance Indicator (109a) had fallen below the national average of 
57.24 but was still significantly above the fourth quartile threshold of 46.88.  Members 
expressed a view that the targets affect the decision taken on planning applications. 
 
Members also noted that the Customer and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
would be receiving a report on sickness absence as the performance had deteriorated 
slightly in comparison to the same period last year. 
 
RESOLVED – 1) That the second quarter performance report 2006/07 be noted. 
 
2)  That the Director of Development and Regeneration submit a report to a 
future meeting of this Committee on whether the Best Value Performance 
Indicators affect the decisions taken on planning applications, in particular 
those which are of a complex nature. 
 

06.OS.68 CAPITAL PROGRAMME, 2006/07 - MONITORING  
 
The Committee received and considered a joint report of the Executive Director – 
Corporate and Customer and the Director of Finance on the progress of the 2006/07 
Capital Programme through the monitoring and performance control mechanism in 
place. 
 
The latest Capital Programme forecast for 2006/07 showed an increase in the 
programme of £2,601,070 to £16,682,490 and the report recommended the received 
Capital Programme for 2006/07. 
 
The report contained a number of recommendations of the Capital Programme Board 
to revise the capital budget allocation for a number of projects and to include new 
Category B and Category C scheme on the programme’s reserve list. 
 
The report generated a debate on several issues arising from the report, particularly in 
relation to the Chapel Street Enhancement – Phase 3, with Members expressing 
concern that the scheme had been poorly managed by the contractor with the use of 
poor quality materials.  There was also a likelihood of the scheme being overspent. 
 
RESOLVED – 1) That the report be noted. 
 
2)  That the Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment submit a 
report to a meeting of the Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel on the Chapel Street Enhancement Scheme detailing the quality materials 
used by the contractor, quality checks made on the workmanship and the 
overall management of the scheme. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 4 December 2006 

06.OS.69 CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2007/08 TO 2009/10  
 
The Committee received and considered a report of the Director of Finance on the 
committed Capital Programme for 2007/08 to 2009/10, the list of Category C bids 
submitted for inclusion in the programme, together with the assessment of the bids by 
the Capital and Efficiency Programme Board. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

06.OS.70 REVENUE BUDGET, 2006/07 - MONITORING  
 
The Committee received and considered a report of the Director of Finance setting out 
the current financial position of the Council compared against the budget and 
efficiency savings targets it set itself for 2006/07 for the General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account. 
 
The report confirmed an improving position in respect of the General Fund with the 
projected outturn forecast an overspend of £170,000 had since changed and the 
current projection was now for an overspend of £67,000.  The report indicated the 
areas of significant movements since the last monitoring report. 
 
Progress continued to be made towards the Corporate Savings Target of £278,000 for 
the year with further savings to be made as the year progresses, however a number of 
areas required to be monitored closely.  The area of Job Evaluation would also require 
close monitoring. 
 
In relation to the monitoring of the 2006/07 revenue budget Members considered a 
report of the Director of Finance on Concessionary Travel and how it may affect the 
Revenue Budget, as it could not predict the level of potential overspend on this 
budget.  Data had now been received regarding actual costs incurred in the first part 
of the year and it was now expected to have an overspend in the region of £35,000. 
 
The report indicated that the Housing Revenue Account balances were expected to 
be in the region of £592,000 at the end of the financial year. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted and that this Committee receives a report 
on current situation regarding Job Evaluation. 
 

06.OS.71 BUDGET SCRUTINY PROCESS FOR 2007/08  
 
The Director of Finance submitted a report on the progress made on the 
recommendation made by the Overview and Scrutiny Panels during the 2006/07 
budget consultation and proposals on how the budget scrutiny for 2007/08 may be 
undertaken. 
 
The report indicated the background to the scrutiny of the 2006/07 budget with a 
series of recommendations made by the Panels to the Executive Cabinet and the 
responses by the Executive and the actions taken. 
 
The budget scrutiny process had been more effective than had previously been 
undertaken and that the Overview and Scrutiny process had been able to influence 
the thinking of the Executive. 
 
The report set out a suggested scrutiny of the 2007/08 budget. 
 
RESOLVED – 1)  That the progress made on the recommendations made by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee during the 2006/07 budget cycle, be noted. 
 
2)  That the following be the approach to the Scrutiny of the 2007/08 budget: 
i) An update on the high cost areas identified during the 2006/07 scrutiny. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 4 December 2006 

ii) A review of the 2006 cost profiles prepared by the Audit Commission as 
compared to those in 2005. 

iii) A review of the likely impact of the efficiencies and savings on the 
Council’s ability to deliver the promises in the Corporate Plan and the 
mitigation being put in place. 

iv) A review of the low cost areas where small costs may bring about big 
improvements. 

 
06.OS.72 POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SECOND QUARTER BUSINESS PLAN 

MONITORING STATEMENT  
 
The Director of Policy and Performance submitted the Business Plan Monitoring 
Statement relating to her Directorate which identified the progress made against the 
key actions and performance indicators for the period 1 July 2006 to 30 September 
2006. 
 
The report indicated the activities of the Directorate over the last quarter and the good 
progress made towards integration of the previously diverse section since the 
Directorate was established in April 2006. 
 
Performance management and reporting had been a key focus during this period, in 
particular the Directorate had been involved in producing a Data Quality Self-
Assessment, a new requirement by the Audit Commission which sets out the 
Council’s approach to the collection, monitoring and reporting of Best Value 
Performance Indicators. 
 
The Statement had been produced in a new format, with further work underway to 
develop the presentation of the report. 
 
The report was positive, with performance improving for 56% of the indicators, 59% of 
targets had been exceeded and 72% of indicators currently in the upper quartile 
compared with other Councils. 
 
Action Plans had been developed proposing ways to improve the areas of percentage 
of invoices processed in 30 days, sickness absence and the percentage of projects 
using the project management toolkit. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

06.OS.73 CHORLEY COUNCIL DRAFT EQUALITY SCHEME  
 
The Director of Policy and Performance submitted a report outlining the purpose of 
and background to the draft equality scheme and presented the scheme to Members 
for consideration. 
 
The report indicated that the Council must produce an Equality Scheme to meet the 
statutory Race Equality Duty, Disability Discrimination Act and the Equality Act.  
Failure to meet these duties could potentially have a negative impact upon the 
reputation and standing of the authority, particularly with hard to reach groups.  
Actions set out in the scheme to ensure the Councils effectively progress the 
equalities agenda would be carried out by individual Directorates within the authority. 
 
The Committee discussed and accepted the Council’s commitment to achieving Level 
Three of the Equality Standing by 20 March.  Currently the authority meets Level One. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 4 December 2006 

 
06.OS.74 AREA FORUM PILOT SCHEME  

 
The Committee received a report of the Chief Executive providing Members with an 
overview of the Area Forum Pilot Scheme following three rounds of meetings in the 
three pilot areas of Clayton-le-Woods North Ward, Coppull Parish and Lostock Ward 
during the period February to October 2006. 
 
The report set out the objectives of the pilot scheme as the objectives of the projected 
borough-wide Community Forums based on the strong evidence from the public and 
other stakeholders that the original objectives of the pilot had been achieved and the 
pilot was a success. 
 
Attached to the report was the proposed footprint for the Community Forums included 
4 areas – Central, West, East and South.  Some Members expressed concern at the 
size of the Community Forum footprint on the Borough split and linkages, in particular 
linking Coppull with Adlington and Anderton rather than Coppull with Chisnall. 
 
RESOLVED – 1)  that the report be noted. 
 
2)  That the following responses be submitted to the Executive Cabinet: 
 
● The Committee expressed reservations about the size of the Community 

Forum footprint and the Parish Council split and linkage (particular 
reference was made to the linkage of Coppull with Adlington and Anderton 
etc).  There was concern about sizes and linkages in general. 

 
● The Committee also asked the Executive Cabinet to explore whether less 

frequent meetings in line with the expressed preference in the surveys 
would allow smaller footprints and different linkages.  

 
● The Committee was also concerned about the level and quality of 

engagement with the Parish Councils and that Community Forums should 
not undermine their role. 

 
06.OS.75 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL  INQUIRY  

 
Further to Minute 06.OS.59, 8 November 2006 the Committee received a report of the 
Director of Policy and Performance setting out the five areas of focus, current and 
planned activity within the areas in the new CPA key lines of Enquiry where Chorley 
Borough Council needs to focus attention if it is to achieve excellent status at a future 
assessment. 
 
A limited number of sub groups would be established to examine over the next few 
months each area and report back findings and recommendations to the main 
Committee. 
 
Attached to the report were tables setting out the information for the five areas of 
focus. 
 
It was proposed that the first sub-group would focus on Equality and Diversity and in 
line with the suggested way forward would meet approximately 3 times between 
beginning of July and mid-February. 
 
The second sub-group would take on the two areas of Capacity and Achievement.  
The Capacity would look at the issue of being more explicit re non-priorities and 
Achievement would consider how we can further strengthen the scrutiny function 
taking on board the areas outlined in the recent Government White Paper in particular, 
how we can achieve better and more meaningful community involvement in the 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 5



Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
Public Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 4 December 2006 

scrutiny process.  Again the proposed group to meet three times between the 
beginning of January and mid-February. 
 
RESOLVED – That the members of the following Sub-Groups be as follows: 
 
● Equality and Diversity Sub-Group 
 Councillors Ball, Brown, Mrs Smith and Snow. 
 
● Capacity/Achievement Sub-Group 
 Councillors Culshaw, Edgerley and Mrs Gray. 
 

06.OS.76 FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Committee received the Council’s Forward Plan setting out details of the key 
executive decisions expected to be taken between 1 December 2006 to 31 March 
2007. 
 
The Plan identified several matters for potential discussion by the Executive and the 
Committee were requested to indicate those items that it wished to examine in 
advance of consideration by the Executive. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Forward Plan be noted. 
 

06.OS.77 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee were presented with the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 
2006/07. 
 
The programme included the envisaged timescales for the ongoing scrutiny inquiries 
and the planned details of the periodic inventory of past inquiries. 
 
RESOLVED – That the work programme be noted. 
 

06.OS.78 SELECTION OF SERVICE PROVIDER FOR THE MARKET FUNCTION  
 
The Chair accepted as urgent, consideration of this item, not included on the agenda 
in order to inform Members of the current situation regarding the selection of a service 
provider for the markets function as a report had been requested by this Committee 
before any firm decisions are taken by the Executive. 
 
Members were notified that the original proposal to proceed with a Company to run 
the Council’s market function would not now proceed and that alternative 
arrangements would be examined in the next couple of months. 
 
A suggestion was made that the recommendations that came from the Customer 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel into Chorley Markets should be examined in relation to a 
service provider. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 6



CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL FORWARD PLAN 
FOR THE FOUR MONTH PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2007 TO 30 APRIL 2007

This Forward Plan sets out the details of the key decisions, which the Executive Cabinet, individual Executive Members or Officers expect to take during 
the next four-month period. The Plan is rolled forward every month and is available to the public 14 days before the beginning of each month. 

A Key Decision is defined as: 

1. Any executive decision (as opposed to a regulatory decision) which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making 
of savings where there is: 

• A change in service provision that impacts upon the service revenue budget by £100,000 or more, or 

• A contract worth £100,000 or more, or 

• A new or unprogrammed capital scheme of £100,000 or more. 

2. Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working 
in two or more electoral wards  - This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out 
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

3. As a matter of local choice, the Forward Plan also includes the details of any significant issues to be initially considered by the Executive Cabinet 
and submitted to the Full Council for approval. 

The current members of the Executive Cabinet are: 

Councillor Peter Goldsworthy  Leader of the Council  
Councillor Patricia Case  Deputy Leader and Executive Member for Corporate, Policy and Performance 
Councillor Eric Bell  Executive Member for Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment 
Councillor Alan Cullens  Executive Member for Resources 
Councillor Peter Malpas  Executive Member for Economic Development and Regeneration 
Councillor Mark Perks Executive Member for Health, Leisure and Well Being 
Councillor John Walker Executive Member for Customer, Democratic and Legal 

Anyone wishing to make representations about any of the matters listed below may do so by contacting the relevant officer listed against each key 
decision, within the time period indicated. 

Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution, a Key Decision may not be taken, unless: 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n

d
a
 P

a
g
e
 7



• It is published in the Forward Plan; 

• 5 clear days have lapsed since the publication of the Forward Plan; and 

• If the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Executive Cabinet, 5 clear days notice of the meeting has been given. 

The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in the Forward Plan in 
accordance with Rule 18 (General Exception) and Rule 19 (Special Urgency) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules. 

Copies of the following documents may be inspected at the Town Hall, Chorley, PR7 1DP or accessed from the Council’s website: www.chorley.gov.uk

• Council Constitution 

• Forward Plan 

• Reports on the key decisions to be taken 

• The minutes or decision notice for each key decision, which will normally be published within 5 working days after having been made 

Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Executive Cabinet, which are held at the Town Hall, Chorley. The dates and times of the 
meetings are published on www.chorley.gov.uk or you may contact the Democratic Services Section on telephone number 01257 -515118 for further 
details. 

D Hall 
Chief Executive 

Publication Date: 19 December 2006 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n

d
a
 P

a
g
e
 8



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of 
Housing Rents 
and other 
charges 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 
and Executive 
Member for 
Resources

11 Jan 2007 Tenants and 
Shadow 
Housing 
Management 
Board  

Tenant 
Meetings  

Report of the 
Executive 
Director - 
Environment 
and 
Community 

Executive 
Director - 
Environment 
and Community 
Tel: 01257 
515500 
Monday 18 
December 2006 

Approval of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Fees 
and Charges 
2007/08 

Executive 
Member 
Decisions - 
Health, 
Leisure and 
Well-Being

Executive 
Member for 
Life, Leisure 
and Well Being

2 Feb 2007 Service Users  Publicity in the 
various centres 
and publication 
on the Council's 
website  

Schedule of 
proposed 
charges 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Friday 5 January 
2007 

Approval of 
Housing 
Transfer 
Contract for 
recommendation 
to Full Council 

Housing 
Transfer 
Committee

Executive 
Leader

21 Feb 2007 Internal and 
External 
Stakeholders  

Established 
channels of 
communication 
for stock 
transfer 
process  

Plain english 
version of 
Transfer 
Contract 

Executive 
Director - 
Environment 
and Community 
Tel: 01257 
515500 
Monday 21 
January 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n

d
a
 P

a
g
e
 9



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Selection of 
Public Toilet 
Cleaning 
Contract - 
Renewal 

Director of 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoo
ds and 
Environment

Executive 
Member for 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Environment

22 Feb 2007 Legal and 
Procurement 
Teams  

Procurement 
procedures  

Report of the 
Director of 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoo
ds and 
Environment 

Director of 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods 
and 
Environment 
Tel: 01257 
515720 
Thursday 24 
January 2007 

Review of 
Community 
Management of 
Community 
Centres 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Health, Leisure 
and Well Being

22 Feb 2007 Human 
Resources, 
Staff and Trade 
Unions  

Formal Staffing 
Process 

Report of the 
Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
by Thursday 24 
January 2007 

Approval of 
Sustainable 
Resources 
Development 
Plan 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Development 
and 
Regeneration

22 Feb 2007 Officers and 
Members  

Draft Document Report of the 
Director of 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 

Director of 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 
Tel: 01257 
515285 
by Thursday 24 
January 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

0



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of 
"Every Child 
Matters action 
Plan" outling the 
Council's 
contribution to 
the wider 
agenda 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for Life 
and Leisure

22 Feb 2007 Stakeholders  Draft Plan 
circulated and 
available for 
comments on 
website  

Draft Action 
Plan 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Monday 21 
January 2007 

Approve 
"Choosing 
Health Action 
Plan" outlining 
the Council's 
contribution to 
the wider 
agenda 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Health, Leisure 
and Well Being

22 Feb 2007 Stakeholders Draft Plan 
circulated and 
available for 
comments on 
the Website  

Draft Action 
Plan 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Monday 21 
January 2007 

Review of 
Advice and 
Support Funding 
to External 
Groups 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Health, Leisure 
and Well Being

22 Feb 2007 Chorley and 
South Ribble 
CAB and 
Lancashire 
County Council 
Welfare Rights 
Service  

Direct Contact Various - 
including 
Annual 
Reports on 
Activity 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Monday 21 
January 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

1



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of 
Local 
Development 
Framework 
Householder 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Development 
and 
Regeneration

22 Feb 2007 All Spatial 
Development 
Stakeholders  

Letters, 
Statutory Notice 
and publication 
on the Council's 
website  

Householder 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document 

Director of 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 
Tel: 01257 
515285 
Thursday 24 
Januray 2007 

Approval of 
Information 
Security Policy 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

22 Feb 2007 Officers, 
Members and 
Trade Unions  

Publication of 
documents on 
the Council's 
Intranet  

Information 
Security Policy 

Director of 
Information and 
Communication 
Technology Tel: 
01257 515455 
Thursday 25 
January 2006 

Approval of ICT 
Strategy 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

22 Feb 2007 Officers and 
Members  

Publication of 
Strategy on the 
Council's 
Website 

IEG Statement 

Customer 
Focus Strategy

Director of 
Information and 
Communication 
Technology Tel: 
01257 515455 
Monday 25 
January 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

2



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of 
Core Funding 
Awards for 
2007/2008 - 
£5000 or less 

Executive 
Member 
Decisions - 
Health, 
Leisure and 
Well-Being

Executive 
Member for 
Health, Leisure 
and Well Being

23 Feb 2007 Previous 
Applicants and 
other groups 
who express an 
interest  

Media 
Coverage, 
website and 
distribution of 
application 
packs  

Completed 
Application 
Forms 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Friday 26 
January 2007 

Approval of 
Housing 
Transfer Legal 
Agreement 

Council Executive 
Member for 
Resources

6 Mar 2007 Tenants, 
Members and 
Partners  

Tenant 
Consultation, 
Partner Liaison 
and Member 
Briefings 

Report of the 
Chief 
Executive, 
Transfer 
Agreement 
and Summary 
Document 

Chief Executive 
Tel: 01257 
515104 
Monday 5 
February 2007 

Approval of 
Core Funding 
Awards 
2007/2008 - 
more than 
£5000 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Health, Leisure 
and Well Being

29 Mar 2007 Previous 
applicants and 
other groups 
who express an 
interest  

Media 
Coverage, 
website 
publication and 
Application 
Packs to be 
distributed

Completed 
Application 
Forms 

Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

3



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of the 
Economic 
Regeneration 
Strategy Action 
Plan 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Development 
and 
Regeneration

29 Mar 2007 Private/Public 
Business 
Voluntary/Com
munity Sector 
Regeneration  

Partnership 
based 
workshops 

Report of the 
Director of 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 

Director of 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 
Tel: 01257 
515285 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

Approve 
Accessibility 
Plan 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Development 
and 
Regeneration

29 Mar 2007 All public 
agencies and 
transport 
operators  

Stakeholder 
Workshops, 
Public 
Exhibitions and 
information 
available on 
Council's 
Website 

Plan Director of 
Development 
and 
Regeneration 
Tel: 01257 
515285 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

Approval of Pay 
and Workforce 
Strategy 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

29 Mar 2007 Trade Union's, 
Staff Members, 
Staff Forum 
and Strategy 
Group  

Draft Plan to be 
circulated and 
available for 
comments on 
the website

Draft Plan Interim Director 
of Human 
Resources Tel: 
01257 515159 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

4



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Approval of 
terms for 
aquisition of 
property 
required to 
construct the 
Gillibrand Link 
Road 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

29 Mar 2007 None  None Report of the 
Arbitrator 
appointed to 
determine 
compensation 
due 

Director of 
Property 
Services Tel: 
01257 515311 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

Approval of new 
Pay and Grade 
Structure as part 
of the Job 
Evaluation 
process 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

29 Mar 2007 Trade Unions, 
Staff Members, 
Staff Forum 
and Strategy 
Group  

Draft Plan to be 
circulated and 
available for 
comments on 
the Website 

Various 
Options on 
Reward 
Structures 

Interim Director 
of Human 
Resources Tel: 
01257 515159 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

Approval of 
IEG7 Return 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Resources

29 Mar 2007 Officers and 
Members  

Strategy 
available on 
Council's 
Website 

IEG7 
Statement, 
Customer 
Focus Strategy 
and ICT 
Strategy 

Director of 
Information and 
Communication 
Technology Tel: 
01257 515455 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

5



Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to 
be taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Expected 
Date of 
Decision 

Proposed 
Consultees 

Method(s) of 
Consultation 

Documents to 
be 
considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Representation
s may be made 
to the following 
officer by the 
date stated 

Appoval of the 
"Older People's 
Action Plan" 
outlining the 
Council's 
contribution to 
the wider 
agenda 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Health, Leisure 
and Well Being

29 Mar 2007 Stakeholders  Draft Plan 
circulated and 
available for 
comment on 
the website  

Draft Plan Director of 
Leisure and 
Cultural 
Services Tel: 
01257 515815 
Thursday 1 
March 2007 

Approval of 
Neighbourhood 
Management 
and 
Engagement 
Strategy 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Environment

28/04/07 Internal and 
External 
Stakeholders  

Draft Strategy Report of the 
Director of 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoo
ds and 
Environment 

Director of 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods 
and 
Environment 
Tel: 01257 
515720 
Thursday 29 
March 2007 

Approval of 
Streetscene 
Strategy 
Document 

Executive 
Cabinet

Executive 
Member for 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Environment

29/04/07 Internal 
Stakeholders  

Draft document 
to be circulated 

Strategy 
Document 

Director of 
Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods 
and 
Environment 
Tel: 01257 
515720 
Thursday 29 
March 2007 

A
g

e
n
d
a
 Ite

m
 5

A
g
e
n
d

a
 P

a
g

e
 1

6



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template July 2006  

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of ICT Services Overview & Scrutiny Committee 10 January 2007 

 

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY (ICT) 

STRATEGY 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT` 
 

1. To gain approval to consult upon the contents of the draft Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT) Strategy. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. The ICT Strategy defines a programme of work that will contribute directly to; 
 

 People 

a. Improving access to public services through 

• the development of additional access channels and the removal of barriers to 
their use 

b. Reducing pockets of inequality through 

• Improved equality of access to services 

c. Getting people involved in their communities through 

• Improved access to the decision making process and improved access to 
information. 

 

Performance 

a. Ensuring Chorley Borough Council is a performing organisation by 

• Improving the quality of services delivered through the use of technology 
• Reducing service costs through the use of technology 

 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The report contains no risk issues for consideration by Members. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

4. The revised ICT Strategy will supersede the existing strategy approved by the Executive 
Cabinet in April 2002. It aims to build upon the foundations laid by that document and 
support the further development of technology into areas that will deliver real benefits to 
our customers and efficiencies to the organisation. 

 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 17



THE STRATEGY 
 
5. It is recognised in the Council’s Human Resources Strategy that people are the 

organisations most important asset. It now needs to be recognised that its information 
assets must be a close second.  This strategy documents the Councils plans to use, 
develop, focus and protect the technology and communication resources that enable 
underpin the use of those assets.  

At the highest level, the strategy will document the key contributions that information and 
communication technologies (ICT) can make in achieving the Council’s vision and ensure 
that those contributions are translated into appropriate objectives and targets. 
The Strategy plans the development of all ICT and associated services delivered by the 
Directorate and defines the roles and strategic contributions of the ICT Services 
Directorate in the following areas; 
 

• Customer Services - internal and external e.g. the public, staff and members 

• Systems Development and Integration – ensuring the systems and standards are in 
place to enable the joining up of public services generally and improving the delivery 
of Council services in particular through the effective integration of ‘front’ and ‘back’ 
office systems. 

• GIS/LLPG – ensuring continued progress in this area and establishing the technology 
as a key strategic planning and operational support tool. 

 

6. The synergies that exist between data and voice communications have been recognised 
and responsibility for the management and development of telephony has been 
transferred to the Customer Services Team within ICT Services. This strategy will 
therefore include objectives relating to issues and developments within this area. 

 

CONSULTATION 
 
7. If the strategy is to deliver the benefits detailed within it, it is essential that the document 

be seen as business driven and not technology for the sake of it.  In recognising this, it 
must also be recognised that those best able to comment on the relevance of the actions 
and targets within the document are those whose service delivery is dependent upon 
robust and innovative technology services – officers and Members. 

 
8. It is therefore recommended that officers and Members be invited to comment on the 

contents of the strategy during a short consultation period. 
 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
9. There are no HR implications associated with this report. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
10. There are no immediate financial implications associated with this report.  Delivering the 

strategy and the costs therein will be subject to the normal business planning 
considerations during the Council’s budget cycle for 2007/08 and beyond. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
11. It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee agree that officers and 

Members are invited to comment upon the contents of the strategy. 
 
 
TIM MURPHY 
DIRECTOR OF ICT SERVICES 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 18



Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

ICT Strategy 2006-2009 November 2006 
ICT Strategy 2006-

09 Draft.doc 
Union Street offices 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Tim Murphy 5455 
15

th
 December 
2006 

ICT Strategy OS Report.doc 

 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 19



Agenda Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 
TECHNOLOGY STRATEGY 2006-2009 

November 2006

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 21



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Contents

1 FOREWORD................................................................................................................................. 3

2 INTRODUCTION......................................................................................................................... 5

2.1 BACKGROUND ......................................................................................................................... 5

2.2 WHAT DOES THE STRATEGY COVER?...................................................................................... 5

2.3 WHY DO WE NEED A STRATEGY? ............................................................................................ 6

2.4 HOW DOES IT LINK WITH THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE OBJECTIVES? .................................... 7

Overview.......................................................................................................................................... 7

The Golden Thread.......................................................................................................................... 9

The Council’s Vision ....................................................................................................................... 9

Business Plans............................................................................................................................... 11

2.5 ICT FRAMEWORK .................................................................................................................. 11

3 WHERE ARE WE NOW AND WHERE DO WE WANT TO BE?....................................... 12

3.1 WHERE HAVE WE COME FROM?............................................................................................. 12

3.2 WHERE WE ARE NOW? ........................................................................................................... 12

3.3 WHERE DO WE WANT TO BE?................................................................................................. 14

3.4 BARRIERS TO IMPROVEMENT ................................................................................................ 16

Value for money/Business Case .................................................................................................... 16

Identity Management..................................................................................................................... 16

User Skills ..................................................................................................................................... 17

eGovernment ................................................................................................................................. 17

Technology .................................................................................................................................... 17

Security.......................................................................................................................................... 17

Freedom of Information Act .......................................................................................................... 17

Shared Services Contact Centre.................................................................................................... 17

Customer Expectations.................................................................................................................. 17

Technical Skills ............................................................................................................................. 18

Corporate efficiencies ................................................................................................................... 18

Take-up.......................................................................................................................................... 18

Financial/Contractual/Partnerships ............................................................................................. 18

4 THE COUNCIL’S ICT STRATEGY ........................................................................................ 19

4.1 INTRODUCTION ...................................................................................................................... 19

4.2 SUCCESSFUL ESERVICES........................................................................................................ 21

4.3 SERVICE LEVELS ................................................................................................................... 21

4.4 INFRASTRUCTURE .................................................................................................................. 22

4.5 GOVERNANCE ........................................................................................................................ 24

4.6 BUSINESS TRANSFORMATION & EFFICIENCY ....................................................................... 25

4.7 WEB DEVELOPMENT & INTEGRATION .................................................................................. 26

4.8 INTERNAL SUPPORT SERVICE ................................................................................................ 28

4.9 MAJOR CORPORATE PROJECTS.............................................................................................. 29

4.10 ELECTED MEMBERS............................................................................................................... 30

4.11 SECURITY............................................................................................................................... 31

4.12 ICT FRAMEWORK .................................................................................................................. 32

4.13 PROCUREMENT ...................................................................................................................... 33

4.14 INFORMATION MANAGEMENT............................................................................................... 33

4.15 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS) & LOCAL LAND AND PROPERTY GAZETTEER

(LLPG) .............................................................................................................................................. 34

5 ICT STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN...................................................................... 37

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 22



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

6 APPENDIX 1 – KEY MILESTONES AND SUCCESSES...................................................... 43

7 APPENDIX 2 – GLOSSARY ..................................................................................................... 48

8 DOCUMENT INFORMATION AND META DATA.............................................................. 50

8.1 DOCUMENT LOCATION .......................................................................................................... 50

8.2 REVISION HISTORY................................................................................................................ 50

8.3 APPROVALS ........................................................................................................................... 50

8.4 META DATA........................................................................................................................... 50

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 23



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

1 FOREWORD

nformation and communication technology (ICT) is a critical element of modern service
delivery. As the expectations of our customers increase, we recognise the key role technology
will play in delivering the improvements in service quality and efficiency needed if we are to 

meet those expectations. Sustainable, high quality services do not simply stem from the visible
customer interface or front office technology. They are a product of solid technological
foundations and support services, effective, efficient business processes and well trained 
members of staff committed to excellent customer service. As a Council, we are working to
deliver each piece of the customer service jigsaw and this document is an important contribution
to that work. 

I

We are rightly proud of the recent Customer Focus and Access Best Value Inspection, which 
assessed the Council as three stars with excellent prospects for improvement, the highest
possible score. In reaching their score, the inspectors recognised that ‘sophisticated technology 
and e-government initiatives provide high quality access and speedy response and deliver
efficiency savings which are passed onto the customer in the form of improvements’1.  We
welcome the external endorsement of our approach and the progress we have made but we
recognise there is still much to do. This document aims to build upon the excellent foundations 
we have laid and further improve the service delivered to our customers in terms of quality and
efficiency. Importantly, potential efficiencies resulting from the use of technology are not
confined to the ‘front office’. The Council is challenging business processes in the front office but
also in the administrative heart of the organisation.  A programme of work, dubbed the 
‘eWorkforce’ programme, systematically reviewed areas of the ‘back office’ and contributed both 
significant cashable savings and on-going improvements in support service delivery.  This 
demonstrates our commitment to using ICT as a means to both improve the ‘customer 
experience’ and the efficiency of the back-office that supports that ‘experience’. This work was 
recognised in our recent Use of Resources audit, when the Audit Commission stated their view 
that ‘the Council is making effective use of IT as a means of managing and improving Value For 
Money in its internal management processes, back office functions and frontline service
delivery’.2

Looking to the future, we note the publication of the Governments ‘Transformational 
Government’3 strategy paper and are delighted to see that the Council is already actively
pursuing the three key transformations it describes;

Services….designed around the citizen or business 

a shared services culture 

professionalism in the planning, delivery, management, skills and governance of IT 
enabled change

This document refers to common ground shared with the Governments paper, but equally 
importantly it demonstrates clear links to our own local corporate objectives and through those,
to the objectives of the communities we serve, embodied in the Community Strategy. In it, our
citizens and businesses tell us they wish to see improved access to public services. We aim 

1
 Customer Focus and Access Best Value Inspection (Audit Commission, August 2005)

2
 Use of Resources Audit Feedback (Audit Commission, March 2006)

3
 Transformational Government – Enabled by Technology (Cabinet Office, November 2005)

Version 0.1  Page 3

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 24



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

to deliver this through a greater understanding of our customers and their needs. We will both
extend channel choice and eliminate the perceived barriers to their use. 

Importantly, we have recognised that to deliver real success, we must change the way we think
and work. As an organisation we have anticipated the Gershon agenda. We have demonstrated
a readiness to challenge the status quo in pursuance of the efficiencies that technology can 
deliver in the ‘back office’, whilst also examining the way we deliver services through the ‘front
office’ to ensure we are delivering what is good for the customer rather than what is easy for the
Council. Innovation is fundamental to transformation. Our vision is common to that detailed in
the Government’s Transformational Strategy which states ‘..creating and retaining the capacity
and capability to innovate and use technology effectively as technology itself develop….is the
only way in which public services can keep up with a continually changing globalised society’2’.
This Council will meet the challenge - a governance framework and project management
methodology has been established to support effective investment decision making and
subsequent implementation support that will maximise the capability and capacity of the
organisation to adopt and use technology.

Central government shares our commitment to improving services through the application of
technology. We have embraced the drive to enable the electronic delivery of services and met 
the 100% BVPI 157 target on schedule at the end of December 2005. 

The next 3 years are likely to be as challenging as the last as we wrestle with the issues of the 
take-up of electronic services as well as extending their availability. I am confident we will meet 
those challenges and deliver the improved efficiency and service quality our customers deserve
and we aspire to. 

Councillor Alan Cullens 

Executive Member for Resources 

Version 0.1  Page 4

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 25



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

2 INTRODUCTION 

2.1 Background

This document supersedes the ICT strategy approved by the Executive Cabinet in April 2002. It
aims to build upon the foundations laid by that document and support the further development of
technology into areas that will deliver real benefits to our customers through improved service
delivery and a more efficient organisation. 

The Council has an enviable track record for the development and application of technology. As 
an organisation, it has driven through significant change as it strives to improve the quality and
accessibility of its services and improve back office efficiency. Examples of the progress made 
during the last three years are (our progress against targets set in the previous strategy is 
included as appendix 1); 

o The design and implementation of the One Stop Shop and shared services contact centre

o Installation of a fibre-optic network connecting the Council’s main offices 

o Design and use of a robust project management methodology 

o Implementation of electronic document management and workflow 

o Mobile working technology

ICT has the potential to transform public services, but it must form part of a wider strategy to
improve quality and accessibility. This strategy is a ‘sister’ strategy to the Council’s ‘Customer
Focussed Access and Service Design Strategy’ which develops the themes of channel migration
and customer segmentation to maximise take-up of electronic services. The ICT Strategy is our 
plan to ensure the technology, infrastructure and skills are in place to meet the demands of the
next generation of public services and details our objectives in building upon past success to 
deliver greater future benefits. 

2.2 What does the Strategy Cover?

It is recognised in the Council’s Human Resources Strategy that people are the organisations
most important asset. It must now be recognised that information assets are almost as
important. This strategy documents the Councils plans to use, develop, focus and protect the
technology and communication resources that underpin the effective use of these assets.

At the highest level, the strategy will document the key contributions that ICT can make in
achieving the Council’s vision for Chorley to become one of the most attractive, caring and 
vibrant places in the North West to live, to work, to invest and to visit. People can expect safe,
clean, sustainable neighbourhoods with equal access to first class, co-ordinated public services
which meet their diverse needs. They can expect high quality local job and training opportunities,
a decent home and to be valued and respected by all. They will be able to have their say and 
influence local services in their areas and to insist on good value for public money. Our friendly,
contemporary market town and village character will be enhanced whilst ensuring Chorley plays
a pivotal role in regional economic development.

Version 0.1  Page 5

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 26



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The Strategy plans the development of all ICT services delivered by the Council and defines the
strategic contributions and roles of the ICT Services Directorate in the following areas; 

o Customer Services –internal to the Council i.e. staff and members and external to the
Council, e.g. the public, suppliers, partners.

o Systems Development and Integration – ensuring the systems and standards are in place to 
enable the joining up of internal and public facing services within the Council and, where 
appropriate, with our partners or other service providers. 

o GIS – the support and development of geographical information systems as a tool for both
corporate policy decision support and operational service delivery. 

In 2004 the opportunity was taken to recognise the synergies that exist between data and voice
communications and responsibility for the management and development of telephony was
transferred to the Customer Services Team within the ICT Services Directorate. This strategy 
will therefore include objectives relating to issues and developments within this area. 

2.3 Why do we need a Strategy?

There are overarching reasons for an ICT Strategy;

To recognise and document the role
of ICT in the wider corporate context
by formalising the links with strategic
plans, objectives and actions. 

To reduce risk 

To ensure proper allocation of
resources

To document decisions about
strategic choices and standards

To provide leadership and a
framework for achieving agreed
objectives

To align individual efforts towards 
achieving overall goals 

To manage change effectively

To provide direction and focus despite a 
turbulent external environment

To explain how to deal with contingencies and
discontinuity

To ensure interoperability within the 
organisation, with citizens, with suppliers and
partners

To facilitate the re-usability of technology
components

To reduce options and ease decision making 

To ensure skills are developed, maintained and
used to the best purpose 

To identify and plan for appropriate ICT 
enabled responses to issues 

To expand upon this in the local context, although the Council has made significant progress 
during recent years, the requirement for change remains as strong if not stronger. The strategic
co-ordination of technological development within the Council is key to the delivery of maximum
benefit from investment both in terms of service delivery and value for money.

In particular, the Gershon Review provides the backdrop for considering value for money and 
efficiency in the public sector and ICT is at the core of most of the workstreams established by
Gershon in his efficiency review. Yet there is clearly a need to use ICT differently to the way it
has been used in previous projects if we are to generate the significant efficiency savings
outlined in the Council’s Forward Looking Annual Efficiency Statements. The ‘low hanging fruit’ 
may have been taken making innovation vital. 

Version 0.1  Page 6

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 27



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

This strategy documents our plans and objectives for supporting the improvements in customer
service that are central to the Council’s plans. As a support service it is critical that we are, and
are seen to be, business and customer focused. In formulating our plans we have met with our 
internal customers and taken note of their views and recognised their priorities. 

We must also recognise the links with other key corporate and departmental strategies
particularly:

The Community Strategy 2005-2025 

The Corporate Plan 

The e-Government Strategy

Integration Strategy 

GIS Strategy

The Customer Focussed Access and Service Design Strategy

The Community Plan provides ‘a framework by which partner organisations can guide and co-
ordinate existing and future activity and actions so they effectively meet community needs and 
aspirations’.4

It is clear that ICT has a significant role to play in meeting the challenges posed by the strategy. 
For example;

o as more people live to a greater age the need for……new ways of providing access to 
services will increase. 

o 55% of the working population travel out of the borough for employment.

The work planned to improve the accessibility of services provides an opportunity to meet some
of the challenges described. In particular, ICT will play a key role in the delivery of ‘Priority 4’ in
the Community Plan - ‘Improving access to and take-up of public services’.

In addition we must also recognise and document our plans to meet significant “one off” service
delivery issues such as the Housing Stock Transfer and the Shared Services Contact Centre. 

Finally, the document will introduce the ‘ICT Service Framework’. This is a series of documents
that define policy relating to service, technology standards and security. 

2.4 How does it link with the Council’s Corporate Objectives?

Overview

The ICT Strategy is one of several inter-related and parent strategies (including the Community
Strategy, the eGovernment Strategy, Customer Focussed Access and Service Design Strategy,
Procurement Strategy and the Corporate Strategy). 

4
 Chorley Borough’s Community Strategy 2005-2025

Version 0.1  Page 7

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 28



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

This strategy will feed the ICT Services Business Plan. It should also inform the business 
planning of all other Council services and be informed by them. The objectives arising from
Business Planning are then assigned to individuals during the Performance Appraisal process 
and monitored by means of regular progress meetings. This ensures the link between individual
objectives and strategic Directorate objectives and hence to the Council’s objectives which are
derived from Community Strategy. 

The Authority is committed, through the Corporate Strategy, to improving its overall performance
with a view to being recognised as an “excellent” authority. 

The building blocks of performance management

It is essential that the performance management system has clear links to the organisation's
goals and objectives and individuals clearly understand their contribution to achieving these
goals.  The process creates a culture of ongoing performance management and rather than
objectives being reviewed on an annual basis that the opportunity is taken to meet regularly and
discuss targets, provide leadership, direction and support. The Councils approach is illustrated
diagrammatically on the next page. 

Review of progress
in delivering objectives that may lead to revised

strategic direction

Performance measures & targets
against which performance & progress can be 

measured

Ownership & accountability
to ensure ownership of targets at the right level

Reinforcement
to ensure staff stay motivated to improve 

Rigorous performance review
to ensure that improvements in performance

are being delivered

Prioritised objectives
appropriately resourced

Bold Aspirations
to stretch and motivate the organisation

Version 0.1  Page 8

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 29



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The Golden Thread 

A 'golden thread' runs through the Authority from the Borough-wide Community Plan through to
service delivery.  Individuals understand how they fit into the bigger picture and in what context 
the actions they take impact on high level vision, objectives and priorities.

The Community Strategy

The Corporate Strategy

Directorate Business Plans

Individual Action Plans/Appraisals 

The Council’s Vision 

Chorley Borough Council’s overall statement of purpose is for:-

Chorley to become one of the most attractive, caring and vibrant places in the North West to live,
to work, to invest and to visit. People can expect safe, clean, sustainable neighbourhoods with
equal access to first class, co-ordinated public services which meet their diverse needs. They 
can expect high quality local job and training opportunities, a decent home and to be valued and
respected by all. They will be able to have their say and influence local services in their areas 
and to insist on good value for public money. Our friendly, contemporary market town and village
character will be enhanced whilst ensuring Chorley plays a pivotal role in regional economic
development.

In support of this vision, for 2006/7 - 2008/9, six strategic objectives were introduced:-

o Put Chorley at the heart of regional economic development in the Central Lancashire sub-
region

o Reduce pockets of inequality

o Get people involved in their communities

o Improved access to public services 

o Develop the character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live 

o Ensure Chorley Borough Council is a performing organisation 

Version 0.1  Page 9

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 30



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The delivery of this strategy will contribute to the Councils objectives as shown below. 

Corporate Priorities ICT Strategy Contribution 

Improved Access to
Public Services

To ensure that technology is effectively applied to improve the quality
and accessibility of services to citizens in ways which

The customer will want to use 

Recognise the diversity that exists in both our citizens and our
workforce

Ensuring that everyone can fully participate in the social, cultural,
political and economic life of Chorley. 

Continually improve the support services provided to colleagues and
Members and, through them, to citizens and business customers.

Work with Members to deliver technologies and services that assist in 
the delivery of their duties.

Work with other organisations to deliver ‘joined up’ services where
the provider is immaterial to those requesting the service

Use technology to understand the customer better and to proactively
shape services around their needs

Ensure Chorley is a 
performing organisation

Work with colleagues to identify and deliver efficiencies through the
application of technology. The ICT Strategy will support the delivery
of greater capacity by:- 

Supporting the application of technologies to improve the 
effectiveness and efficiency of Council services

Defining the clear objectives of using ICT 

The use of mobile and home working for officers and the effective 
integration of front and back-office applications will contribute to
efficient service delivery thereby enhancing capacity

Providing management and leadership for the effective use of
ICT

Enabling good staff engagement

Delivering better ICT procurement and e-procurement
opportunities

Supporting better internal and external communications

efit is gained from the use of GeographicalEnsure maximum ben
Information Systems

Develop the character
and feel of Chorley as a
good place to live 

front office applications will contribute

s and environmental enforcement offices with the objectives

Improving the citizens perceptions of these problems

The use of mobile working for officers in the field and the effective
integration of back-office and
to the delivery of this priority. 

Enabling multi agency working through joining up public services
such as the police, fire and social services with crime prevention
office
of:-

Reducing disorder, nuisance and anti social behaviour and 

Version 0.1  Page 10

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 31



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Business Plans 

The purpose of the ICT Business Plan is to translate the strategic objectives contained within 
this document into actions and individual objectives. It details the purpose of the service and 
contains related budgetary and human resource information. There will also be an impact on
business planning for all other services in regard to their use and potential use of ICT.

Our current ICT Business Plan confirms the key objectives as;

o To develop and maintain an information technology environment that enables the fulfillment
of the Council’s strategic and operational aspirations.

o To provide advice and support to enable excellent customer service. 

o To ensure the effective use of GIS technology by promoting its advantages and supporting
its adoption and use. 

o To meet the Councils’ statutory responsibility for the naming of streets and numbering of 
properties within the Borough.

2.5 ICT Framework

ICT impacts upon the delivery of every Council service. It has the potential to improve existing 
delivery mechanisms and develop new and more efficient ways of working across the
organisation. In essence, the ICT service is an enabler of excellent service and although direct 
contact with the citizen is limited, the facilities we provide are fundamental to the services they 
receive. The very nature of this increasing corporate reliance dictates that threats to the effective
delivery of the service are managed and minimised. To assist in achieving this, the Council will 
adopt an ICT Framework of policies aimed to provide a cohesive, corporate approach to ICT
whilst allowing flexibility, where possible, to achieve operational and strategic aspirations. The
framework will cover subjects such as;

o Procurement o Security

o Networking o Technology support 

o Service standards 

The documents will form a clear reference for all interested parties on the policies in force across 
the Authority. They will provide guidance on matters such as:-

o Standards o Data storage 

o Processes o Resources

Version 0.1  Page 11

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 32



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

3 WHERE ARE WE NOW AND WHERE DO WE WANT TO BE? 

3.1 Where have we come from? 

The Council has come a long way since the government first published its white paper 
“Modernising Government” in the summer of 2000. At that point in time the Authority did not
have:

o An IT infrastructure that could cope with the modernisation agenda

o A web site of any description 

o E-mail or internet access for staff and members 

o Sufficient staff with the necessary skills to manage and implement the desired change

o An understanding of the processes used by the business to deliver services or to administer
the organisation internally 

o Any method of receiving payments other than by cash or cheque (other than direct debit for 
Council Tax) 

o A recognised way of commissioning, planning and implementing projects

Above all, the Council did not have a vision for the future, had no concept of the benefits of
maximising the use of technology to deliver better services and did not put the customer at the
heart of the organisation. Everything the Council did was driven by internal service based
agendas. This message was re-enforced when the Council was one of only six authorities in the
North West to fail to reach the required standards with its first Implementing Electronic
Government (IEG) Statement in the summer of 2001.

3.2 Where we are now?

In common with many organisations, the profile of ICT within the Council has increased in recent
years. The emergence of the eGovernment agenda caused the Council to reappraise the
contribution expected from the Directorate. The visions set out in the ICT Strategy 2002-2005
and the e-Government Strategy, backed by senior management and Member commitment,
brought a new focus. By committing significant resources the Council made a statement of their
belief in the role technology could play in delivering service improvement and efficiencies. Major 
investment decisions were made resulting in:-

o A new, owned fibre optic network installed to connect the Councils town centre buildings
providing the capacity required to deliver both immediate and planned service developments. 

o A Directorate restructure with an emphasis placed on web technologies, integration and 
eGovernment.

o Recognition that the increased use of ICT would increase the support burden and resources 
being made available to ensure that this did not prejudice the continued drive to improve
services through the use of technology. 

o Equipment lease refresh reduced to 3 years from 4-5 years. 

o Telephone network delivered over the Category 5e network to increase flexibility and reduce 
cost of ownership.

Version 0.1  Page 12

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 33



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

o The introduction of Communications Rooms in each main building to improve performance
and increase resilience.

The planning and implementation of the eGovernment programme, together with the associated
capacity, security and integration issues, places considerable pressure on the Directorate whilst
day-to-day operational support requirements remain. 

In infrastructure terms, the Council is well placed to deliver its objectives. The network is 
relatively new as are the majority of our servers. Our critical servers are standardised on an 
industry-leading supplier and configured to: -

o Achieve maximum availability

o Improve resilience

In addition they are the subjects of a commercial disaster recovery contract. 

Recent eGovernment funding has allowed targeted investment in infrastructure and software. 
Our web site is maintained through a content management system ensuring the task of updating 
content can be devolved to a departmental level within known constraints.

Considerable progress has been made on many fronts during the last 3 years. The Directorate 
played a role in the implementation of major new channels by which customers can access
council services including: - 

o The One Stop Shop - which opened to great acclaim in 2003 and is still the subject of 
positive comments from customers and other Councils. 

o The web site – Our web-site offers extensive transactional facilities with on-line access to
Committee agendas, minutes and reports, the on-line submission of planning applications
and the ability to make payments.

o Mobile technologies – Neighbourhood Wardens and Housing Benefits staff are now 
equipped with handheld devices that enable them to spend more time in the field or in
customers homes

o The eGovernment programme met the BVPI157 target of 100% e-enabling of services by 
31st December 2005 and the majority of achievable ODPM’s Priority Outcomes5 are
complete. Work continues on the remainder. 

o The implementation of the Shared Services Contact Centre is well underway and a plan
established for the migration of services into the centre have been developed and approved..
This project is being delivered as a partnership comprising Lancashire County Council and 
the Districts of Burnley, Hyndburn, Pendle, Ribble Valley and Rossendale and is expected to
deliver increasing real benefits to our customers in coming years. 

5
 “Defining eGovernment outcomes for 2005 to support the delivery of priority services & National Strategy 

transformation agenda for local authorities in England – Version 1” 

Version 0.1  Page 13

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 34



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

New facilities must be supported and the increased reliance upon technology within the Council 
places additional strain upon the support service and resolution timescales are ever more
challenging. A key support development occurred in 2004 when, in recognition of the synergy
that exists between telephony and data networking, ICT Services assumed corporate
responsibility for telephony (except mobiles). This offered significant opportunities given the 
expiry of our existing telephony contract in March 2007. However, the lack of telephony skills 
within the Directorate is a weakness that must be addressed.

Recent surveys show the ICT Customer Services Team to be delivering a service that is well
received by our internal customers.  In 2005/06 customer satisfaction was rated at 92%. This 
was particularly welcome given the extensive schedule of accommodation changes during the year 
making it difficult for the Directorate to maintain usual levels of service. 

The recent corporate restructure saw the Business Support Team and Project Support Office
leave the Directorate and responsibility for geographic information systems (GIS) and local land
and property gazetteer (LLPG) added to the Directorates portfolio of services.

The Council has provided ICT facilities and services to members to assist them in performing 
their duties as elected representatives. Members are provided with laptop computers, printers 
and a broadband connection or, if they prefer, the option to use their own equipment. 

A major challenge continues to be the demand for services and support exceeding the resources
available but funding has allowed a ‘mixed economy approach’ to reduce the impact of the
problem. However, the Council must recognise that the inequality of demand and resource will 
continue to be an issue, increasing the importance of effective project planning and prioritisation.

The team is one that is well used to change. In fact, the main barrier to further achievement is
capacity and efforts are being made to automate processes wherever possible to release
support resources. Team members are committed, knowledgeable in their field and keen to 
deliver their objectives. 

The challenges of the Gershon agenda has once again placed ICT centre stage as a key 
enabler of the process transformation required to deliver our targets. The Council is committed 
to meeting (and, where possible, exceeding) central government efficiency targets. 

3.3 Where do we want to be? 

ICT is already central to the delivery of existing services. More importantly, as we seek to 
develop more accessible and customer focused service offerings, it will be pivotal to achieving
the required step change.  The Mobile Data Association forecast that 36.5 billion SMS messages 
will be sent throughout the UK during 2006, with an average of 100 million messages being sent
per day6. Combine this with increasing access to the Internet (see below) and it is not surprising
that ICT is seen as a key tool with which to build better access to public services.

6
 Mobile Data Association June 2006

Version 0.1  Page 14

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 35



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

63% of adults access the Internet

National Statistics 2006 (www.statistics.gov.uk)

ICT is vital to our ability to offer choice of service delivery channel – face to face, phone or
online.  This choice can both improve the customer experience and deliver efficiencies if we can
manage the migration of customers to less expensive channels. The benefits do not end there
however. The effective use of technology is seen as a fundamental enabler of the Council’s 
efficiency programme allowing the transformation of long established working practices, the
elimination of bureaucracy and the improvements that are derived from improved access to
information and good information management.

Central Government targets, in the form of Priority Outcomes, detail aspirations that mostly 
mirror our own. Our vision for ICT is clear. To deliver excellent customer service and efficient
front and back office processes, we must put in place modern, effective and sustainable ICT 
infrastructure supported by effective support systems and services. 

In terms of the service we provide to our customers, we sought their views. A workshop
identified a number of developments that would provide common benefits across the customer 
base. We have listened to those views and section 3 of this document details objectives and
targets set to ensure we deliver a service that meets the requirements of those who use it. 

Version 0.1  Page 15

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 36



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

In general terms, we aspire to deliver: - 

An infrastructure that is… 

o Modern with sufficient capacity o Scaleable

o Resilient to failure o Cost effective 

o Secure o Performant

o Sustainable o Flexible

o Underpinned by effective management
processes and procedures

o

A support service that is… 

o Customer focused o Effective and efficient 

o Innovative o Value for money 

o Responsive o Skilled and knowledgeable

o Motivated o Designed around the customer

3.4 Barriers to Improvement 

There are clear barriers to improvement that must be overcome if the Council is to realise the full 
potential of ICT and eGovernment.

Value for money/Business Case 

A National Audit Office assessment of IT-enabled projects in 2004 found a tendency to ignore
the ‘business case’, moving directly into a detailed specification of what technology was
required, without clarity about objectives or success criteria.  The Council has addressed this
through the use of an defined project management methodology. This requires the identification
of benefits and costs through the creation of a business case. An approved business case is a
pre-requisite of funding approval. Approved projects are then formally managed under the 
Councils project management methodology with progress and performance against budget and
timescales regularly reported to the Efficiency and Capital Board. Key performance indicators
have been established to ensure the success of projects, in terms of critical success factors, can
be reported. 

Identity Management

One of the remaining barriers to delivering effective eGovernment services is that of identity
management. The completion of sensitive transactions on-line, without having to submit proof of
identity in person or by post, will deliver the real benefits eGovernment has always promised. 
The ‘GovernmentConnect’ project promises to deliver the means by which local authorities can
be sure of online identities thereby enabling personalised services, a ‘citizen account’ and the
development of cost effective eGovernment delivery channels. The Council has indicated its
interest in the project and will continue to monitor progress closely with a view to beginning
implementation of the products in 2007.

Version 0.1  Page 16

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 37



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

User Skills

The Council must continue to invest in maintaining sufficient skills in new technologies to support
electronic service delivery and to keep abreast of the latest technology developments.

There is a broad base of ICT skills across the Council, and most major systems now have their
own service based systems administrator. The Council has made great strides in investing in the 
European Computer Driving Licence (ECDL) programme for all staff. The Human Resources
Strategy rightly asserts that Chorley is a place where everybody matters and everyone can have 
access to learning to develop his or her skills and knowledge. Whilst ICT Services provide
central services in certain technical areas, such as network and hardware support and key
system administration, the Council must continue to invest in maintaining sufficient in-house 
skills in supporting dramatically different methods of electronic service delivery.

Some services are unable to achieve sufficient skills coverage in particular applications because
of lack of resources.  The loss of key staff is an increasing risk.  Each service should ensure that
it makes the best use of expert users to support key systems to share/grow knowledge and as a
consequence, mitigate the risks of losing experienced staff.

eGovernment

The Government’s modernisation agenda and, the eGovernment initiative specifically, will
continue to have a significant impact upon the work of the Directorate. The increased use of 
technology to deliver services at a time and place convenient to the customer will result in a 
greater reliance upon technology and place more demands upon all aspects of the service.

Technology

New technologies will shape the future of Council service delivery. The support of these
technologies and indeed, the places from where they can be used e.g. mobile and home
working, will be future considerations.

Security

As we strive to provide improved service accessibility, we remain responsible for the
confidentiality, integrity and availability of information in our possession. Balancing these 
conflicting demands will be a key challenge going forward. 

Freedom of Information Act 

Freedom of information legislation will place increased demands upon the organisation to
manage its information. An increasing volume is held electronically and therefore the information 
management issues surrounding the storage and retrieval of information will be a key concern. 

Shared Services Contact Centre 

As a project encompassing advanced technology, structural change, and partnership working, 
the Shared Services Contact Centre project will continue to impact significantly on each of the 
Directorates teams. 

Customer Expectations 

The combination of escalating customer expectation and the increasing complexity of the
technology environment in which they work will greatly influence the services we provide and
how they are provided. 

Version 0.1  Page 17

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 38



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Technical Skills 

The range of skills required to develop, implement and support the systems and architectures
needed to meet the Councils service delivery demands will remain a serious challenge. We will
continue the use of partnerships to augment the skills of the Directorate, together with
appropriate staff training and development. 

Corporate efficiencies 

The 2003 budget announced a review of ‘new ways of providing departments, their agencies 
and other parts of the public sector with incentives to exploit opportunities for efficiency savings,
and so release resources for front line service delivery’. Although the review itself (Gershon 
Review) offers wide-ranging recommendations, the role of ICT in the delivery of the efficiencies
required to release resource is clearly recognised. Our plans to deliver the efficiencies are in
place and they confirm the central role of technology in achieving our goals. It is likely that the
pace of change required will challenge the resources available within the Council and
significantly affect workloads throughout the duration of this strategy.

Take-up

Our e-government success will be measured not by the provision of service but by take-up. We 
will target both the promotion of new service channels and the measurement of our success in
terms of take-up. Recent government funded research, produced for the e-Citizen National
Project on Take-Up and Marketing, suggests that 46 per cent of adults in England (17.5 million) 
are willing to use online public services but at present only 15% are doing so. This is a clear
illustration of the greater challenge facing eGovernment - improving take-up of the services 
offered via new channels. The partner document to this strategy – The Customer Focussed
Access and Service Design Strategy – sets out detailed strategic plans in this area. The key 
message being that simply making services available through new channels does not
necessarily mean that customers will use them and that the potential to derive greater customer 
‘intelligence’, with the implementation of systems such as the CRM, will allow the more effective
targeting of resources to meet their needs whilst also improving customer service quality and
efficiency.

Financial/Contractual/Partnerships

The resource constraints within which the Council, and in turn the Directorate, must operate will 
offer challenges and considerably influence the technologies we adopt. We have contractual
influences in terms of important medium term support contracts and software licenses. The
imminent Procurement Strategy and an internal review of purchasing arrangements will
influence our purchasing methodology during the period of the plan. 

Version 0.1  Page 18

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 39



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

4 THE COUNCIL’S ICT STRATEGY

4.1 Introduction 

KEY MESSAGE:

The Council must continue to recognise and reinforce the correlation between good
ICT services and the delivery of efficient, effective services to our customers 

This strategy underpins the Councils plans to deliver accessible, customer-focused services to
its customers. The significant progress made during the preceding years have provided sound
foundations on which to build new, efficient service delivery mechanisms whilst extending the
use of technology in the back-office to improve organisational efficiency. This strategy defines 
the Councils approach to consolidating existing service improvements whilst driving forward with
further efficiencies and service accessibility enhancements in line with the Customer Focussed
Access and Service Design Strategy. It recognises the key role of ICT support services in
underpinning excellent customer service and defines plans for improvements in this area. The
key principles set out in the ICT Strategy 2002-2005 are still valid and are updated below: - 

Basic Principles:

Providing technology and support services that support the Community Strategy and
developing mechanisms for the redesign of services in line with the Customer Focussed
Access and Service Design Strategy.

Providing information that is tailored to the recipient’s needs and that is available, up-to-date,
secure and comprehensive.

Enabling easy information flow between different systems and services to meet the needs of
the recipients of Council services.

M a i n t a i n i n g  a n d  d e ve l o p i n g  a n  i n t e g r a t e d infrastructure that enables growth, as
well as ensuring secure, resilient and responsive access to the full range of services.

Reducing the cost of ICT by driving down the total cost of ownership of ICT systems and
developing effective service and infrastructure investment strategies that reduce overall
costs.

Improving the quality of ICT service provision across the organisation.

Ensuring all areas of activity across the Council have access to ICT that meets their service
delivery needs.

Increasing access to training and improving the ability to use ICT. 

Using ICT to enable better decision making and improved performance management.

The core purpose of this strategy is to assist in the delivery of our corporate objectives through
supporting the business plans of the Councils Service Directorates.  It also operates as a 
corporate overview of how technology can assist in delivering those objectives. To this end a 
facilitated workshop with Service representatives was held to identify issues where ICT could
provide assistance. Many of the objectives detailed later are products of that session. The
aspirations of the Local Strategic Partnership set out in the new Community Strategy informed
and influenced our strategic objectives.

Version 0.1  Page 19

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 40



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Discussions with our customers revealed a number of key aspirations that ICT can assist with. 

o Making the Council and its services more accessible 

o The transformation of business processes to deliver benefits to customers and staff 

o The engagement of the citizen in the design and delivery of our services 

o Make more efficient and effective use of information 

o Pro-active service delivery 

o Support the implementation of the Councils other strategies 

o eGovernment targets e.g Priority Outcomes

o Improved telephony services 

o FAST7 accreditation

Analysis of these aspirations highlighted issues and barriers that must be addressed in order 
that they can be met. The table below summarises them and indicates the paragraph(s) within
the strategy dealing with delivery.

Requirement Paragraph(s)

Clarity of service level procedures and commitments 4.3, 4.5, 4.8

Remote access to systems for: - 

o Home workers

o Mobile workers 

o Partner organisations 

4.4, 4.10, 4.12

Inefficient use of existing resources e.g. email 4.2, 4.4, 4.9, 4.12, 4,13, 4.14,
4.15

ICT aspects of the Housing Transfer 4.9

Improve access to services 4.2, 4.4, 4.6, 4.9 

Improve take-up of eGovernment services 4.2, 4.6, 4.7, 4.9 

Perceived usability issues with the web-site and intranet 4.7

Greater engagement with the citizen 4.2, 4.9 

Systems integration 4.7

Effective use of information/Information Management 4.11, 4.12, 4.14

7
 Federation Against Software Theft – www.fast.org.uk

Version 0.1  Page 20

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 41



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The following paragraphs detail key objectives and targets set to monitor progress towards their 
achievement.

4.2 Successful eServices

KEY GOAL

To maximise customer ‘take-up’ of eGovernment services through the provision of
attractive, easy to use, reliable, secure infrastructure and systems.

In common with most councils, Chorley Borough Council has invested significantly in the
infrastructure and systems that will underpin the effective electronic service delivery. It is clear
however, that this investment will only produce value if the services offered as a result, are
recognised by our customers as an improvement on how they previously did business with us.
Only then will they take up the new methods of accessing services or ‘access channels’, and
only then will the Council be in a position to achieve the improved efficiency, reduced costs and
greater customer satisfaction promised by eGovernment.  The task of migrating customers from
existing high unit cost transactions to lower cost channels is a key objective of the Customer 
Focused Access and Service Design Strategy which advocates greater engagement with
customers to understand their preferences and the perceived barriers to the use of more efficient
access channels such as web-site self service.

Targets

1. Implement remaining Priority Outcomes by September 2007. 

2. Develop the use of SMS based services by August 2007. 

4.3 Service Levels

KEY GOAL

To maintain and improve ICT service quality through a continual process of agreeing,
monitoring and reporting upon ICT Service performance and the instigation of actions 
to eradicate poor service. 

Although there is a general understanding of the services delivered by the ICT Services 
Directorate, the lack of complete clarity can lead to customer relationship issues when
assumptions are made regarding the availability of a service or the level to which it will be
delivered. Formal service level management will deliver many benefits; 

o Customer requirements are understood

o ICT services are designed to meet those requirements

o Improved relationships with customers

o Clearer, documented roles and responsibilities of customers and ICT Services 

o Specific targets are defined

o ICT effort is focused on the areas considered important by the ‘business’ 

Version 0.1  Page 21

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 42



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

o Clear and consistent expectations

o Service monitoring allows weak areas to be identified and addressed

o Service level management establishes regular lines of communication between the
Directorate and our customers

Targets

1. Implement Service Level Statement for the Directorates by May 2007. 

2. Establish quarterly Service Level Meetings with each Directorate by July 2007. 

3. On-line service level reporting via the Intranet by August 2007.

4. Annual customer satisfaction surveys undertaken by June 2007 

4.4 Infrastructure 

KEY GOALS

1. To implement and maintain an infrastructure that enhances the delivery of the
Councils strategic and operational objectives. 

2. The exploitation of new technologies to ensure the Council continues to 
benefit from equipment and services that deliver optimum performance and
value for money.

3. An infrastructure that allows the sharing of information with our partners. 

4. A fully featured, value for money telephony system that enhances customer
service and enables efficiencies. 

5. A fully costed replacement programme for the Councils hardware population 
ensuring service availability standards are maintained. 

6. A secure infrastructure that enables the delivery of the Councils eGovernment
programme and ensures the customer confidence necessary for success.

7. A flexible working environment. 

The Councils infrastructure provides a firm foundation on which to move forward. The period
covered by this strategy does, however, include several significant milestones that have the
potential to further improve the technology base from which we work; 

o Our existing telephony services contract with Telewest ends in March 2007. It is opportune to 
once again weigh the benefits of outsourcing this service against those that are possible
through in-house delivery. 

Version 0.1  Page 22

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 43



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

o Our entire PC and printer population is to be replaced during financial year 2006/7. This will 
allow the Council to once again explore the benefits of thin client8 technology.

o As the cost of storage has reduced significantly in recent years the Councils network storage 
arrangements should be reviewed to ensure they continue to represent value for money. 

These milestone events, although significant, must be taken in the context of a continually
developing business environment that dictates the continual review of much of our infrastructure.
It is recognised that the delivery of services is becoming more dependent upon large, complex 
transactional systems and the infrastructure that facilitate their use – to the extent that ‘ most
public services would simply not function at all without their reliable operation’9. This clearly
illustrates the importance of reliable, resilient systems.

A significant national development has coincided with the development of this strategy and 
promises to address the key challenges involved in joining up agencies to deliver better and
more effective services. The ‘Government Connect’ project delivers three main products; 

GC Register A toolkit and common technology to enable local authorities to
authenticate the people and organisations with whom they 
communicate

GC Exchange Providing an affordable, stable platform to link back-office systems 

GC Email Enabling secure email between local authorities and others. 

The Council is committed to the use of the ‘GovConnect’ product set and has registered an
interest in the project. We are keen to engage with the programme as soon as practicable and
see the products as a means of removing significant barriers to the take-up of electronic service 
delivery. LGOLnet (Local Government On-line), a key element of GCExchange has already been
implemented within the Council.

The Council recognises the various benefits that can be delivered through mobile and home 
working. The service quality improvements and efficiencies that mobile working can deliver are 
significant. In addition, home-working can contribute to the Council achieving financial savings
through the consolidation of accommodation. We aim to deliver a portfolio of access methods
that will further improve the flexibility of the Councils access arrangements.

The Council recently implemented a remote access solution that provides the foundations for 
remote access and home-working and provides a more controlled and secure means of access 
for partners and suppliers.

8
 A network device that has the ability to process information independently but relies on servers for

applications, data storage, and administration. (Microsoft Technet)

9
 Transformational Government – Enabled by Technology (Cabinet Office, November 2005)

Version 0.1  Page 23

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 44



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Targets

1. System availability of 98.9% rising to 99.7% by 2007/8 

2. Review network storage requirements in the light of the information management
Policy and the Corporate File Plan once it has been determined. 

3. Implement the recommendations of review in (2) by June 2007. 

4. Develop an email management policy by June 2007. 

5. Using GovConnect products in conjunction with regional partners by December
2007.

6. Review telephony arrangements by November 2006.

7. Implement identified actions from telephony review and replace (if required)
existing telephony services contract by March 2007.

4.5 Governance

KEY GOALS

1. An effective governance structure that ensures corporate thinking and control
is applied to the development and adoption of information and communication
technologies.

2. Clear mechanisms by which users of technology can influence what is
delivered and how.

‘Effective governance for ICT ensures common understanding between the ICT function and the
rest of the local authority as to respective roles and responsibilities. It sets out lines of reporting. 
It links ICT investment directly to advancing the objectives of the local authority and to enabling
service delivery. It ensures regular review of the ICT strategy as requirements change’10

As the Council continues upon a programme of unprecedented change it is clear that the 
effective governance of the programme overall, and the technology element in particular, is a
critical success factor. In a rapidly changing organisation the risk of fragmentation in terms of 
technology adoption and support is significant. For the Council to succeed with its challenging
plans to improve services through the use of technology, it must ensure a corporate vision is 
adopted and driven through. In adopting our existing governance structure (shown below), the 
Council has signalled the intent that this will be the case. 

Recognition also exists that the governance structure must reflect the developing nature of 
Council services, ICT and critically, customer expectations. The arrangements remain under
continual review to ensure this. Having said that, a number of key statements remain; 

10
 Planning for ICT: the service framework published by SOCITM Insight June 2004

Version 0.1  Page 24

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 45



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

o A Chief Officer should have overall responsibility for the Government’s modernising agenda,
the e-agenda and the management of the associated ICT change. Logically this individual 
should also champion ICT at Strategy Group. 

o The developing e-agenda has been mirrored within the Council with the e-Government
Group merging with the eWorkforce Board and Capital Programme Boards to produce the 
Capital and Efficiency Board. This will allow the efficient management of projects without the 
overlap difficulties the previous structure encountered. The group will continue to be charged
with monitoring the delivery of the ICT strategy. 

o The role of the ‘corporate client’ function (i.e. IT Services) is defined as providing strategic
support for the Officer e-Champion and maintaining agreed/adopted standards through
consultation with an ICT user group. The corporate client function should also continue to co-
ordinate the commissioning of ICT services identified as corporate costs, on behalf of
services.

To date, the Council has not implemented a previously stated strategic objective of establishing
an ICT User Group. The ICT Service Directorate has however, developed clear relationships
with departmental system administrators. The value of a user group is recognised and it is felt 
that it would be of value to formalise the existing relationships where they exist and establish
them where they do not. The objective of establishing an ICT User Group is therefore carried
forward for implementation.

Target

1. Establish an ICT User Group by April 2007. 

4.6 Business Transformation & Efficiency

KEY GOAL

Exploit the power of information and communications technology to help transform the 
accessibility, quality and cost-effectiveness of Council services. 

‘Publications from central government, devolved administrations and all national and regional 
local government agencies make it clear that efficiency gains will be delivered by reaping the 
benefits of ICT in transforming public services)11’

The Council is well advanced with its eGovernment programme – the 100% BVPI target was 
achieved by the target date and work continues on a small number of ‘Priority Outcome’ targets.
Although this in itself is a success, the purpose of eGovernment is not to implement technology 
but to begin and sustain continuous improvement through effective business transformation with
technology as the catalyst. It is recognition of this that provides the potential for even greater
rewards as the term eGovernment becomes synonymous with efficient, effective and engaging
government.  The Community and Corporate Strategies recognise this and it is further
embedded in the new Customer Focused Access and Service Design Strategy. 

This progression to the next stage of eGovernment will require the application of standard 
methodologies and the availability of the necessary support to ensure their effective use. The

11
 E is for efficiency – Reaping the benefits of technology (SOCITM 2005)

Version 0.1  Page 25

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 46



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Council has adopted the Business Process Transformation methodology developed by the East 
Lancashire eGovernment Partnership. The methodology has been used to radically reform 
processes associated with the Councils Financial systems resulting in significant efficiencies.

For some time, the Council has used a formal project management methodology, based on 
PRINCE2, to manage projects.  The methodology now has a proven track record following its
successful use on projects such as the eVoting election pilot, the One Stop Shop and the
Committee Administration system.  The Directorate will use the methodology to manage internal
projects.

4.7 Web Development & Integration 

KEY GOALS

1. An Integration Strategy in place 

2. Integrated systems delivering improved front and key back office efficiency

3. An intranet that is seen as a key information resource by its users 

4. A transactional web-site that continues to meet all appropriate accessibility
standards

5. A web site that recognises the diversity of our customers and meets their 
needs

6. Information stored once and used many

The integration of front and back offices systems is key to the delivery of two key overarching
targets;

o Better and more efficient customer service 

o The realisation of the Councils efficiency targets 

The Council has taken independent advice when developing its Integration Strategy. The
Enterprise Application Integration (EAI) vision is based upon harnessing the functionality of the 
existing applications in use, whilst creating an operational environment that is ‘designed for
change’.  The result will be a comprehensive enterprise strategy that supports the Councils 
community goals for quick response to customer or legislative demand, a nimble business 
organisation and business focused on process not applications. The following diagram illustrates
the ‘middleware’ approach to integration. 

Version 0.1  Page 26

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 47



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The strategy has yet to be finalised but it advocates LGOLnet12 as the messaging bus or layer. 
This confirms and reinforces the Councils commitment to the National Projects and the
Government Connect programme, which can use LGOLnet to achieve inter-agency messaging.
Concerns remain around the sustainability of the product and a final review of the Integration
Strategy before approval will confirm the future of LGOLnet at the Council although its adoption
by Government Connect does provide some confidence in its future support and development. 

The Councils web site has developed successfully, providing increasing levels of transactional 
capability. As the Council’s ‘self service’ channel, the web-site represents a major efficiency
opportunity if service customers can be persuaded to adopt it as their preferred means of doing
business with the Council. To ensure that the design and usability of the site is effective in
attracting and retaining visitors, it is considered timely that the ‘look and feel’ of the site is 
reviewed.  It is appropriate that the underlying content management system is reviewed at the 
same time.  As key corporate communication tools, responsibility for the design and content of 
the Intranet and web-site lies with the Communications Officer and the review will be managed
by the Communications Officer. We will, however, have a significant involvement in terms of 
technical advice and compliance with standards.  The Council will strive to continually improve
both the quality and facilities offered by the corporate web site. The SOCITM ‘Better Connected’
web-site survey will form the baseline for an initial quality assessment and a subsequent
improvement plan. 

The redevelopment of the Councils intranet has been an outstanding success in terms of both
the final product and the staff engagement element of the project. The design was the result of
extensive staff consultation and, importantly, was accepted unchanged by senior management.
Although the new design has been implemented, work will continue to ensure the site remains 
‘fresh’ and attractive to staff and delivers greater efficiencies. The strategic development of the
intranet contributes to a number of objectives such as achieving efficiency targets, improving 
information management and more effective use of both human resources and technologies
such as email.

12
 LGOLnet is an open source form of middleware and is a product of the LAWS national project.

Version 0.1  Page 27

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 48



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The Directorate has worked with Parish Councils to establish a presence on the Councils web
site for those expressing an interest. It is expected that this facility will be extended to other 
groups during the course of 2007. 

Targets

1. Integration Strategy agreed by January 2007 

2. Front to key back office integration in place by November 2007

3. Continuous improvement of web-site facilities and design measured against
SOCITM quality measures 

4. LLPG integration to Environmental Services, Revenues, Electoral Registration and
Land Charges by March 2007 

5. Review existing content management system by December 2006

4.8 Internal Support Service 

KEY GOAL

A flexible support service that meets or exceeds customer expectations 

As the Council moves forward with the modernisation agenda - Gershon efficiencies, process 
transformation, adding customer contact channels etc., its reliance upon ICT grows as a
consequence. The internal support service must develop and evolve with its customer base and
make use of technology to improve the accessibility and efficiency of the service.

Communication is key to our success. The Directorate does not currently publish a service level 
statement therefore our customers are not formally made aware of the standards to which 
service will be delivered. A service level statement is essential in establishing and
communicating not only service levels, but the responsibilities of both customer and service
provider.

A more periodic means of communication will be provided in the form of the ICT User Group
referred to earlier in this document. This will be a forum at which the performance of the
Directorate can be debated and improvements defined and agreed.

In an area where demand for resources often outstrips supply, it is important that we maximise
efficiency by utilising the available technology. Remote fault fixing has recently been added to 
the support tools available and the Directorate is now able to report upon network and server 
availability. The success of the Intranet has defined it as a key corporate communication tool
and we will develop our use of it to reduce the support burden through the use of self-service
problem reporting and frequently asked questions (FAQ’s). 

Version 0.1  Page 28

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 49



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Targets

1. Report against the Directorate’s agreed key performance indicators as required by 
the Councils performance management arrangements. 

2. Establish a presence on the Intranet to assist users in self-service fault fixing and
placing support calls by April 2007.

3. Meet or exceed the defined Key Performance Indicators 

4.9 Major Corporate Projects 

KEY GOAL

To provide the necessary support to key corporate projects to enable their successful
delivery

The Council is in a period of considerable change with projects that will fundamentally transform 
the way in which services are delivered planned during the strategy period. 

o Tenants recently voted for Council Housing Stock to be transferred to a new housing
association by March 2007. For this to happen, it will be necessary to disengage the Housing
Service from the Council, without interrupting or reducing the quality of services enjoyed by 
tenants.

o The opening of the Shared Services Contact Centre in June 2005 was the culmination of a
project that began, in partnership with 5 other District Councils and Lancashire County
Council, in November 2001. The scale and scope of the partnership make it unique and a
noteworthy achievement. The Council recognises however, that this is the beginning of a 
process that will see the transformation of service delivery within the Council – a ‘single tier’ 
approach to service delivery, real partnership development and, for the first time, the creation
of an holistic view of the customer. Although the project is a fully managed service there is 
considerable input from the ICT Services Directorate, to support the desktop equipment used
and to ensure effective integration with the Council’s facilities.

o Although the Council has already been successful in achieving significant support service 
efficiencies, the efficiency agenda stemming from the Gershon report13 reinforces the 
Councils view that the drive must continue but with the added focus of central government
targets. Gershon recognises this, stating ‘ Local government has a key role to play in this
ambitious agenda, and many local authorities are already securing efficiencies through
investment in technology and rationalisation of back office and procurement functions.’
Achieving efficiencies in back-office processes almost invariably involves the use of
technology. The Council, with independent advice, defined the areas in which it felt 
technological resource could be effectively targeted to deliver efficiencies. The ‘eWorkforce’
programme was the result of that work. It became clear, however that there was a growing
synergy between the work of the eGovernment Group and eWorkforce groups and that it
would be appropriate to combine them into the Efficiency and Transformation Board (later 

13
 Releasing Resources to the Front Line – Sir Peter Gerson CBE, July 2004 

Version 0.1  Page 29

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 50



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

combined with the Capital Programme Board to form the Capital and Efficiency Board). The
eWorkforce programme delivered a number of significant projects that have enabled the
Council to further improve efficiency and improve service accessibility and quality; 

o Improving access to information by redesigning the Intranet 

o Implementing a ‘self service’ flexi-time system 

o ‘Accessing Democracy’ – a project to streamline and improve the process by which agendas, 
reports and minutes are created, managed and published.

o The programme has a defined forward workplan with phase 2 and 3 projects awaiting
consideration.

Targets

1. Support the delivery of the Councils objectives in terms of the Housing Options
Appraisal process within the defined timescales.

2. Support the continued delivery of the Shared Services Contact Centre in line with
objectives defined by the Council. 

3. Support the delivery of the efficiency targets defined in the Councils Annual
Efficiency Statements. 

4. Support the successful delivery of the Efficiency and Transformation programme to
the timescales defined in the relevant project documentation.

4.10 Elected Members

KEY GOAL

Elected Members have access to, and are supported by, technology that
enhances the service they provide to citizens whilst easing the burden of 
increasing demands on their time. 

The Council is committed to extending the services offered to its elected Members. The recent
implementation of broadband services has provided the network infrastructure over which 
effective access to Council services can be established. As with our other customers, it is 
important that consultation with Members drives these developments. The recently formed
eGovernment & Access Consultation Group will be the forum at which this can be discussed. 

Topics for discussion could be; 

o The ‘paperless’ Council Chamber with electronic access to agendas and reports

o Additional training requirements

o Use of mobile technology to provide mobile access to email 

Version 0.1  Page 30

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 51



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Targets

1. Establish the areas of interest to Members by July 2007 and subsequently develop 
the themes

2. Carry out a full satisfaction survey for all Members by July 2007 

4.11 Security

KEY GOALS

1. A secure network that has successfully balanced security with
operational effectiveness 

2. Infrastructure that our customers can trust 

3. A BS7799 compliant Security Policy

4. Implementation of the recommendations of the BS7799 Gap Analysis

5. An effective Business Continuity plan that is regularly reviewed and
updated

A secure operating environment is fundamental to the discharge of the Council duties and
responsibilities. In discharging those responsibilities in new, more efficient ways, the Council is 
heavily dependent upon the trust of customers - trust that would be adversely affected by 
security breaches. The Council will continue to take the infrastructure security very seriously.
The recent project to develop a BS7799 compliant Security Policy demonstrates the Councils 
commitment. The preparatory work was carried out by a CLAS14 accredited consultant and 
included extensive interviews with interested parties such as Human Resources, Legal and
Audit. In addition to the policy itself, a key output from the project was a BS7799 gap analysis 
from which a Security Improvement Plan was developed. The implementation of the Security
Improvement Plan is a key strategic target.

The Councils Business Continuity Plan was seen as a strength during the recent security work. It
is essential that the plan is kept current and efforts continue to be made to improve the Councils 
ability to recover in the event of a serious interruption to service.

The Council must ensure that ICT facilities are not abused and that access to resources such as
the Internet, do not compromise infrastructure security. To this end arrangements to monitor and 
report upon internet usage will be explored in 2006.

14
CLAS is the CESG Listed Adviser Scheme - a pool of high quality consultants approved by CESG 

(the Information Assurance (IA) arm of GCHQ) to provide Information Assurance advice to 
government departments and other organisations that provide vital services for the United Kingdom 

Version 0.1  Page 31

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 52



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Targets

1. Issue the new Information Security Policy by March 2007. 

2. Implement the Security Improvement Plan by the agreed dates 

3. Review the arrangements for the monitoring of web usage by employees by May
2007

4.12 ICT Framework

KEY GOAL

Define the policies and standards necessary to ensure the effective 
management of the Councils systems and infrastructure 

The complexity of the Councils information and communications infrastructure mean it is 
essential that policies are put in place to effectively manage the various elements. To this end,
the following policies will be developed and a timetable established for their review. 

o Infrastructure

o LAN (local area network) environment

o E-mail communications 

o Internet provider 

o Remote access 

o PC security

o Virus protection 

o Disaster recovery

o Acquisition of equipment

o Acquisition of software

o Disposal of equipment

o Refresh cycle (how quickly PCs are replaced) 

Version 0.1  Page 32

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 53



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Targets

1. Document the required standards and policies by August 2007 

4.13 Procurement

KEY GOAL

Ensure ICT procurement adheres to corporate procurement policy

Two significant procurement opportunities arise during the period of this strategy. The lease 
contracts for desktop equipment have been coordinated to ensure all equipment will be 
refreshed within the financial year 2006/7. Although this can be seen as a significant support
issue, it also provides the opportunity to establish a standard desktop across the authority. The
scale of the procurement also offers the opportunity to re-examine the case for thin client 
technology.

The second key procurement will be the replacement of the existing Telewest telephony
contract. Again, this is a significant opportunity to test the market and establish if a case exists to
bring the service in-house or the benefits of outsourcing are still compelling.

Targets

1. Establish the viability of thin client architecture

2. Procure the necessary hardware within timescales that allow the efficient
replacement of the current equipment 

3. Review telephony arrangements by September 2006

4. Implement the Telephony Strategy in line with defined timescales by March 2007 

4.14 Information Management

KEY GOALS

1. Integrated systems that promote data being held only once 

2. Electronic information stored cost effectively in accordance with the 
Corporate File Plan 

3. Effective management of information through the employee life-cycle

4. Procedures in place that facilitate compliance with the Information 
Management Policy.

Freedom of Information legislation has focused the corporate mind on the storage and disposal
of information. Issues highlighted during recent work to establish areas of weakness in terms of
information management included; 

Version 0.1  Page 33

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 54



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

o The lack of procedures in relation to staff leaving the organisation did not offer certainty as to
the management of information following their departure. Procedures must be established to
ensure the responsibility for information remains clear throughout and following the leaving 
process.

The Council’s current storage system promotes a ‘silo’ approach to information management 
with each service Directorate storing information as they see fit. The Information Management
Policy requires this to be reviewed, introducing the concept of functional rather than personal 
storage. This will ensure both a corporate approach to storage and easier management. 

o Management of emails is an issue that must be addressed during the period of the strategy.
An effective archiving solution is required to ensure the increasing volume does not create 
operational data management issues or diminish the value of email. 

Some provisions within the ICT Security Policy also relate to information management. Following 
its approval, a copy of the policy documents can be found on the Intranet.

Targets

1. Liaise with Human Resources to implement procedures to ensure the effective
management of information through the employee starting and leaving processes 
by March 2007.

2. Review the network storage devices by December 2006 to ensure they remain
value for money

3. Implement the new corporate file plan as defined in the Information Management 
Strategy

4. Recommend solution for email archiving by July 2007

4.15 Geographic Information Systems (GIS) & Local Land and Property Gazetteer
(LLPG)

KEY GOALS

1. Business improvements through the effective use of GIS & LLPG 

2. Maintain status 1 for National Land and Property Gazetteer updates 

3. Improve access to GIS data both within the Council and for our
customers

4. Ensure Positional Accuracy issues are effectively addressed

5. Ensure the statutory responsibilities for Street Naming and Numbering
are met. 

Version 0.1  Page 34

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 55



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

The Council has yet to realise the full potential of GIS.  Although it is in use in some 
Directorates, it is almost universal in it’s application with most Directorates owning information
that would benefit from spatial representation. Having identified and mapped this information, it
would then be available for combination and analysis allowing;

Better informed Policy and Service Delivery: As a decision support tool to be used both in the
formulation of strategy and the operational management of services.

Improved Customer Responsiveness: As technology has increased the accessibility of 
information, expectations have risen. The Council must respond and GIS, combined with the
Internet, provides an improved means for delivering information and services to customers in a 
format that is easy to understand. 

Improved Efficiency and Coordination: GIS offers opportunities to improve co-ordination of 
services and to ensure resources are applied where they will have most impact. The council is 
already working with the County Council to make available information that could reduce waste 
and inefficiency.

Advancing Access to Technology by Citizens in the State: GIS can be used to communicate
ideas and messages to customers, whether as a method for presenting planning alternatives, or 
as a means of highlighting information to customers on the Council’s web-site.

In 2005, the Council retained external expertise in the form of Salford GIS to develop a GIS 
Strategy. We are now delivering that strategy and a number of the targets detailed here are
common to both documents. 

There is an obvious benefit to customers if countywide information is available in one place. The 
Council are committed to this and will continue to work with the County Council to extend the
number of datasets published on MARIO (Lancashire County Council’s Public GIS system 
http://mario.lancashire.gov.uk/).

The Council will also continue to work closely with the County Council to ensure we gain 
maximum benefit from Mapzone (the internal version of MARIO).  This collaboration may offer 
efficiencies and a feasibility study carried out by Salford GIS offers a picture of general interest
in developing a collaborative GIS across the County, although some districts have indicated they
would not wish to pursue the option. 

As well as developing the datasets in use within GIS we must also ensure it is properly 
supported. We are in the process of implementing Mastermap to replace Landline prior to it
becoming unsupported and we will assess our options in terms of the Positional Accuracy 
Improvement (PAI) programme. This is a programme of work undertaken by Ordnance Survey 
(OS) to improve the accuracy of its detailed map base by going through a process of re-
surveying the 1:2500 scale mapped areas of the UK, resulting in map features ‘moving’ so that 
they are more accurate in relation to the National Grid. The improved accuracy of the OS
mapping may mean that business data will no longer be aligned with the new maps. Items 
plotted against them, such as buildings and parcels of land may move several metres in relative
positioning, rendering applications useless unless data is repositioned.

The Council recently re-attained status 1 in relation to the updating of the national address hub 
(NLPG). We are one of less than 70 authorities providing daily updates to the NLPG.  Our
investment in the LLPG has clear objectives – a single address database for the Council.  We
have already developed integrations to our Environmental Services and Licensing systems and 
are presently working towards integrating a further 3 applications.

The recent service restructure also resulted in the ICT Directorate assuming responsibility for the
Statutory requirement for Street Naming and Numbering within the Council. 

Version 0.1  Page 35

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 56



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Targets

1. Maintain status 1 for updating the NLPG. 

2. Develop the datasets available on the corporate GIS.

3. Provide access to GIS through theloop by July 2007. 

4. Develop a plan to address PAI. 

5. Continue to develop LLPG integrations as defined in the Integration Strategy. 

Version 0.1  Page 36

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 57



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

5 ICT STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

The ICT Strategy Implementation Plan establishes, at a high level, the activities necessary to
deliver the strategic objectives over a 3-year period.  The pace of development within the 
information and communications technology sector mean our plans must be fluid and flexible
allowing the Council to react to opportunities as they arise. As a result, the work plan will be
reviewed on an annual basis to ensure it continues to reflect the needs of the organisation as it
moves through a period of un-precedented change in ICT terms. 

The actions will be incorporated into a series of annual work plans, which will form part of the 
ICT Services Business Plan.

The delivery of the Strategy will be dependent on - 

o Corporate ownership by Management Team 

o The capacity and skill of the staff within the ICT Directorate to deliver the strategy within
current resource constraints

o Effective prioritisation of projects recognising the importance of ‘structural’ work i.e. work that 
is essential to maintain and improve the underpinning infrastructure that are the foundations
on which we will build improved services.

Version 0.1  Page 37

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 58



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

IC
T

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

 -
 I
M

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e

f 
N

o
.

T
a

rg
e

t
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n
n

e
d

W
h

e
n

W
h

o
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
Im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

IC
T

A
P

1
Im

p
le

m
e

n
t 
re

m
a

in
in

g
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

U
n

iq
u

e
 n

u
m

b
e

ri
n

g
 o

f 
e

m
a

il 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 S

in
g
le

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
e
B

ill
in

g
 m

o
d
u
le

 o
f 
A

c
a
d
e
m

y
R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

O
c
t 
2

0
0
6

S
e
p
t 
2
0
0
7
 

J
a

n
 2

0
0

7

IC
T

A
P

2
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
S

M
S

 b
a

s
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
rs

/b
e
n
e
fi
ts

T
ri
a
l 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7

A
u

g
 2

0
0

7
 

IC
T

A
P

3
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
In

it
ia

l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
d
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t

A
g
re

e
 l
e
a
d
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
S

L
S

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n

ts

M
a
y
 2

0
0
7
 

J
u

l 
2

0
0

7

D
e
c
 2

0
0
7

C
S

M

C
S

M

C
S

M

IC
T

A
P

4
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
M

e
e
ti
n
g
s

w
it
h

 e
a
c
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

D
ia

ry
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s

J
u
l 
2
0
0
7

C
S

M
/S

W
IM

IC
T

A
P

5
A

n
n
u
a
l 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s

u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e

n
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
u
rv

e
y

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
s
u
rv

e
y

A
p

r 
2

0
0
7

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

C
S

M

IC
T

A
P

6
O

n
-l
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 

In
tr

a
n
e
t

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 o
n

-l
in

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
a

g
re

e
d

 K
P

I’
s
 

A
u

g
 2

0
0

7
 

C
S

M
/S

W
IM

IC
T

A
P

7
S

y
s
te

m
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
9
8
.9

%
 r

is
in

g
 t
o
 9

9
.7

%
M

o
n
it
o
r 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
O

n
-g

o
in

g
 f
ro

m
M

a
r 

2
0
0

6
C

S
M

IC
T

A
P

8
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 e

m
a
il 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

o
lic

y
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7

IT
S

O

IT
S

O

IC
T

A
P

9
U

s
in

g
 G

o
v
C

o
n

n
e
c
t 
p

ro
d
u

c
ts

;

G
C

 R
e

g
is

te
r

G
C

 E
x
c
h
a

n
g
e

G
C

 E
m

a
il 

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 b
e

c
o

m
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
ro

m
 

G
o
v
C

o
n
n
e
c
t 
T

e
a
m

. 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
7

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/S

W
IM

P
a
g
e
 3

8

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 59



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e

f 
N

o
.

T
a

rg
e

t
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n
n

e
d

W
h

e
n

W
h

o
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
Im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

IC
T

A
P

1
0

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

E
x
p
lo

re
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

A
u

th
o
ri

ti
e

s

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts

J
u

n
 2

0
0

5

N
o

v
 2

0
0
6

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

£
8
K

IC
T

A
P

1
1

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
id

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 f
ro

m
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y

re
v
ie

w
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 
u

p
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
M

a
r 

2
0
0

7
D

 o
f 
IC

T
 

£
1

5
0

K

IC
T

A
P

1
2

P
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
m

o
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

m
a
il 

a
n
d
 

n
e

tw
o
rk

s
to

ra
g

e
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 w
id

e
n

in
g

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 s
o

ft
w

a
re

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
t

P
ro

c
u

re

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t

E
x
te

n
d

 a
s
 h

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
ilo

t

S
e

p
 2

0
0

5
 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
5

J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
6

A
u

g
 2

0
0

6
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/C

S
M

C
S

M

C
S

M

C
S

M

£
4

0
K

 L
G

O
L

IC
T

A
P

1
3

P
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
m

o
te

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0

6
 

T
ri
a

l
w

it
h

 c
h

o
s
e

n
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
to

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs

D
e
c
 2

0
0
5

O
c
t 
2

0
0
6

C
S

M

C
S

M

IC
T

A
P

1
4

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 I
C

T
 U

s
e
r 

G
ro

u
p

A
p
r 

2
0
0
7

C
S

M

IC
T

A
P

1
5

A
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

ta
te

d
 B

V
P

I1
5

7
 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
0
0
%

 b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5

D
e
c
 2

0
0
5

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

IC
T

A
P

1
6

In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

J
a
n
 2

0
0
7

S
W

IM

IC
T

A
P

1
7

F
ro

n
t 
to

 k
e
y
 b

a
c
k
 o

ff
ic

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

b
y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7

D
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
.

J
a

n
 2

0
0

7

N
o

v
 2

0
0
7

S
W

IM

S
W

IM

L
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n

e
x
c
e
s
s
 o

f
£

1
0

0
K

IC
T

A
P

1
8

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
w

e
b
-

s
it
e
 u

s
in

g
 S

O
C

IT
M

 q
u
a
lit

y
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 ‘
B

e
tt
e

r 
C

o
n
n

e
c
te

d
’
R

e
p
o

rt

R
e
v
ie

w
 C

o
n
te

n
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

A
n
n
u
a
lly

 f
ro

m
F

e
b

 2
0

0
7

D
e
c
 2

0
0
6

S
W

IM

S
W

IM

IC
T

A
P

1
9

L
L
P

G
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
, 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
, 
E

le
c
to

ra
l 

R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 L

a
n

d
 C

h
a

rg
e
s

L
L

P
G

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
L

P
G

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

L
L

P
G

 L
ic

e
n

s
in

g

L
L

P
G

 E
le

c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

L
L

P
G

 L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7
S

W
IM

/L
L

P
G

C
o

-o
rd

in
a
to

r

P
a
g
e
 3

9

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 60



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e

f 
N

o
.

T
a

rg
e

t
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n
n

e
d

W
h

e
n

W
h

o
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
Im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

IC
T

A
P

2
0

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
te

n
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

a
s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h

e
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 w

e
b

-
s
it
e

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
6

S
W

IM
£

3
5

K
 (

C
M

S
 

o
n

ly
)

IC
T

A
P

2
1

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 p
re

s
e
n

c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 I
n
tr

a
n
e
t 
to

 
a
s
s
is

t 
u
s
e
rs

 i
n

 s
e
lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
a
u
lt
 f
ix

in
g
 a

n
d

p
la

c
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

a
lls

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
w

e
b
-b

a
s
e
d
 f
a
u
lt
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
F

A
Q

’s
 o

n
 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t

A
p

r 
2

0
0
7

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7

C
S

M

C
S

M

IC
T

A
P

2
2

M
e
e
t 
o
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 t
h
e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d

 K
e
y
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
O

n
-g

o
in

g
D

 o
f 
IC

T
 

IC
T

A
P

2
3

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
ils

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n

s
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s

w
it
h

in
 t
h
e

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

A
s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
y

c
o

rp
o
ra

te
s
c
h

e
d
u

le

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

rs
 a

s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

IC
T

A
P

2
4

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
n
ta

c
t
C

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

a
t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 B

o
a

rd
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 d

u
ri
n

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t

A
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

2
0

0
4
-2

0
1

1

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

rs
 a

s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d

IC
T

A
P

2
5

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

S
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

A
tt
e
n
d
 t
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
&

 E
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 B

o
a
rd

 

A
s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 o
f 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s

A
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

IC
T

A
P

2
6

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e

liv
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
to

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t

p
ro

je
c
t 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
.

A
s
s
is

t 
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 t
a

rg
e

ts
O

n
-g

o
in

g
A

ll 
T

e
a

m
 

IC
T

A
P

2
7

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 
to

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 t
h
e
m

e
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e

w
it
h
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

m
e

a
n
s
 e

.g
. 
w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
, 
q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ilo

ts

F
u
ll 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o
n

J
u

l 
2

0
0

7

T
B

C

T
B

C

T
B

C

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

T
B

C

T
B

C

T
B

C

T
o

 b
e

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

IC
T

A
P

2
8

C
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
 f
u
ll 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

s
u
rv

e
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

D
ra

ft
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

n
a

ir
e

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7
D

 o
f 
IC

T
 

P
a
g
e
 4

0

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 61



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e

f 
N

o
.

T
a

rg
e

t
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n
n

e
d

W
h

e
n

W
h

o
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
Im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

C
ir
c
u

la
te

A
n
a
ly

s
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

J
u

l 
2

0
0

7

A
u

g
 2

0
0

7
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

IC
T

A
P

2
9

C
o

n
s
u

lt
 u

p
o

n
 a

n
d

 i
s
s
u

e
 t
h
e

 n
e

w
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 P
o
lic

y
Is

s
u
e

 p
o

lic
y

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7
D

 o
f 
IC

T
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

IC
T

A
P

3
0

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 d

a
te

s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
S

e
c
u
ri
ty

 P
o
lic

y
 t
o
 p

la
n
 

F
e
b
 2

0
0
8

IC
T

S
O

T
o
 b

e
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d

IC
T

A
P

3
1

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

w
e

b
 b

ro
w

s
in

g
 b

y
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 p
ro

d
u
c
ts

M
a

k
e

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o
n

s

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7

M
a
y
 2

0
0
7
 

IC
T

S
O

IC
T

S
O

T
o

 b
e

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

IC
T

A
P

3
2

D
o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

p
o

lic
ie

s
A

u
g

 2
0

0
7

 
D

 o
f 
IC

T
 

IC
T

A
P

3
3

D
e

te
rm

in
e

 d
e
s
k
to

p
 h

a
rd

w
a
re

 r
e
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
in

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 2

0
0

6
/7

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t
E

x
p
lo

re
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
th

in
 c

lie
n
t 

C
h

a
n

g
e

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

J
a

n
 2

0
0

7

J
a

n
 2

0
0

7

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/C

S
M

C
S

M

£
2

0
K

 f
o

r 
p

ilo
t

IC
T

A
P

3
4

P
ro

c
u

re
 t
h

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a

ry
 h

a
rd

w
a
re

 w
it
h

in
ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
llo

w
 t
h
e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

c
u
re

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a
ry

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
&

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
e

b
 2

0
0
7

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/C

S
M

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/C

S
M

E
s
t.
 £

3
5
0
K

 

IC
T

A
P

3
5

L
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
ta

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
e
a

v
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

D
o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
S

ta
rt

e
r 

a
n

d
 L

e
a
v
e

r 
p

ro
c
e
s
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 o
n

-l
in

e
 f
o

rm
s
 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
6

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7

IT
S

O

IT
S

O

IC
T

A
P

3
6

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
to

ra
g
e

 d
e
v
ic

e
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 v
a
lu

e
 f
o

r 
m

o
n
e

y
E

s
ta

b
lis

h
 i
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 e

x
is

ts
 

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

G
a
in

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 b
u
y
 

P
ro

c
u

re
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t

S
e
p
t 
2
0
0
6
 

D
e
c
 2

0
0
6

D
e
c
 2

0
0
6

A
p

r 
2

0
0
7

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

C
S

M

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/C

S
M

E
s
t.
 £

7
0
K

 

IC
T

A
P

3
7

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 f
ile

 p
la

n
 a

s
d
e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t
S

tr
a
te

g
y

P
a
g
e
 4

1

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 62



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

S
tr

a
te

g
y

R
e

f 
N

o
.

T
a

rg
e

t
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n
n

e
d

W
h

e
n

W
h

o
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
Im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

IC
T

A
P

3
8

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
o

lu
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
e
m

a
il 

a
rc

h
iv

in
g

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

G
a
in

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 b
u
y
 

P
ro

c
u

re
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7

J
u

l 
2

0
0

7

O
c
t 
2

0
0
7

C
S

M

D
 o

f 
IC

T
 

D
 o

f 
IC

T
/C

S
M

T
o

 b
e

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

.

IC
T

A
P

3
9

M
a

in
ta

in
 s

ta
tu

s
 1

 f
o

r 
u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 N

L
P

G
.

O
n

-g
o

in
g

G
IS

 O
ff

ic
e

r 

IC
T

A
P

4
0

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 
th

e
 

d
a

ta
s
e

ts
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

o
n

 
th

e
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

IS
.

L
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 d
a
ta

s
e
ts

 

Im
p

o
rt

 d
a

ta
s
e
ts

M
a

r 
2

0
0

7
 a

n
d

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7
 a

n
d

p
e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

IC
T

A
P

4
1

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 G

IS
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
lo

o
p
.

L
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 L

C
C

S
u

b
m

it
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 f
o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g

W
o
rk

w
it
h
 L

C
C

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

N
o

v
 2

0
0
6

F
e

b
 2

0
0
7

J
u

l 
2

0
0

7

£
7
.5

K
p
.a

.

IC
T

A
P

4
2

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
la

n
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 P

A
I.
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
c
a
le

 o
f 
p
ro

b
le

m

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s

J
u

n
 2

0
0

7

A
u

g
 2

0
0

7
 

M
a

r 
2

0
0

8

G
IS

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

£
5
0
K

IC
T

A
P

4
3

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 
to

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 
L
L
P

G
 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
s

a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

A
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

L
L
P

G
C

u
s
to

d
ia

n

P
a
g
e
 4

2

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 63



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

6
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1
 –

 K
E

Y
 M

IL
E

S
T

O
N

E
S

A
N

D
 S

U
C

C
E

S
S

E
S

 

K
e

y
 M

il
e
s
to

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
u

c
c
e
s

s
e
s

A
c

h
ie

v
e

d
B

e
n

e
fi

ts

P
u
b
lic

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

-p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

w
e

u
n

d
e
rs

to
o
d

w
h

a
t 

th
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r

w
a

n
te

d
 f

ro
m

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

IE
G

 1
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

S
e
t 

o
u
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 b

lu
e
 p

ri
n
t.
 S

e
c
u
re

d
 £

2
0
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
g
ra

n
t.

A
p
p
o

in
t 

e
-G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r

C
e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 t

o
 p

la
n
,

im
p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
 t

h
e
 e

-G
o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

A
g
e
n
d

a

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 e

-G
o

v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

G
ro

u
p
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 2

0
0

5
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 

e
-G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
 l
o
c
a
lly

d
e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a

lly
 o

w
n

e
d
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
e
-G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

b
u

ild
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 I

E
G

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

IC
T

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 b
lu

e
 p

ri
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 r
e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
-s

e
rv

ic
e
s

a
n
d

k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e
 e

c
o

n
o
m

y
.

O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
 –

 A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 b

lu
e

p
ri
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 c

it
iz

e
n
 c

e
n
tr

ic
 d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

a
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
a
n
d
 C

a
ll 

C
e
n
tr

e

N
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
L

a
n

d
 a

n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 G

a
z
e
tt
e
e
r

S
tr

a
te

g
y

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
m

a
p
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 L

o
c
a

l 
L
a

n
d
 a

n
d
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 G

a
z
e
tt
e
e
r

w
h

ic
h

w
ill

 “
g

lu
e
 t

o
g
e
th

e
r”

 a
ll 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
re

la
te

d
 d

a
ta

 

W
e
b
 S

it
e
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 –
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

P
ro

v
id

e
d
 m

o
m

e
n
tu

m
 a

s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f

ir
s
t 

v
is

ib
le

 s
te

p
 i
n
to

 t
h

e
w

o
rl

d
 o

f 
e
-s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

P
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

c
o
n
te

n
t

is
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 
to

 b
u

y
 i
n
. 

IT
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

P
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
n
d

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
a
t 

fo
llo

w
s
.

A
 f

a
s
t,
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
t,

 s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 s
c
a
le

a
b
le

 t
o
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d

s
o
f 

th
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 a

n
d
 c

it
iz

e
n
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

D
e
s
k
 T

o
p
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 

a
n
d
 e

m
a
il

V
it
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
o

ls
 o

n
 e

v
e
ry

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
r

d
e
s
k
to

p

IE
G

 2
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

A
 c

h
a
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 s

to
c
k
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 “

lo
c
a
le

g
o
v
” 

c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

fr
o

m
 O

D
P

M
. 

F
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f 

th
e
 v

is
io

n
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 I

E
G

1
 a

n
d
 a

lig
n

e
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
e

s
. 

S
e
c
u
re

d
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
£

2
0

0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
c
a
p

it
a
l
g
ra

n
t.

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

m
e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
  

(P
R

IN
C

E
2
) 

a
d
o

p
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

e
-G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
ts

. 
P

ro
v
id

e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 

m
a
n
a

g
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t

w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

P
a
g
e
 4

3

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 64



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

W
e
b
 S

it
e
 P

h
a
s
e
 2

 

-
A

ll 
p
a

p
e
r 

fo
rm

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 

w
e

b
 s

it
e
 

-
e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

o
rm

s
 f

o
r 

k
e

y
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
e

lf
-s

e
rv

ic
e
 b

y
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
. 

D
e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 k

e
y

e
-s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e

 O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
.

P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 d

e
liv

e
ry

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

e
d

a
n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d

u
s
in

g
 v

o
lu

m
e
tr

ic
s
 o

f 
fo

o
tf
a
ll 

a
n

d
 p

h
o

n
e
 c

a
lls

. 
G

iv
e
s
 a

 s
o
lid

 r
o
u
te

 m
a
p
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d
.

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

S
D

 T
o
o
lk

it
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 l
a

u
n
c
h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

in
tr

a
n
e
t 

a
n

d
e
x
tr

a
n
e
t

-
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

m
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t

s
y
s
te

m

-
fi
rs

t 
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

e
ta

 d
a
ta

In
tr

a
n
e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

ir
s
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il

w
id

e
 r

e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

 f
o
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g
e
. 

E
x
tr

a
n
e
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
u

n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
/o

u
t

o
f 

o
ff
ic

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 O
n
 L

in
e

-
s
k
ill

s
 a

u
d
it
, 

tr
a
in

in
g

-
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
w

e
b

a
c
c
e
s
s
/e

m
a
il

A
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

w
it
h
 I

n
te

rn
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

-m
a

il 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 g

iv
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

k
n
o

w
le

d
g
e
 b

a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

e
b
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

a
n
e
t.
 O

n
e
-o

n
-o

n
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

b
ro

a
d
b
a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 r
o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

to
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
e
-V

o
ti
n
g
 P

ilo
t

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a

s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 r

u
n
 t

w
o
 e

-v
o
ti
n
g

/c
o
u
n
ti
n

g
 p

ilo
ts

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 s

h
o

w
n
 t

h
a
t 

n
e

w
 c

h
a

n
n
e

ls
o
f 

v
o
ti
n
g
 c

a
n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y

im
p
ro

v
e

d
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
it
iz

e
n

s
w

it
h
 t

u
rn

o
u
ts

o
f 

6
3
%

, 
5
0

%
 a

n
d
 5

1
%

 a
t 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

th
re

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
e
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 –

 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.

R
e
v
is

e
d
 I

C
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

n
it
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 s
k
ill

s
 

T
h
e
 I

C
T

 u
n
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

a
d

ic
a
lly

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

to
 b

e
tt
e
r 

e
n
a

b
le

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

g
e
n

e
ra

lly
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

-
s
k
ill

s
 a

u
d
it

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 t

h
e
 E

u
ro

p
e
a

n
 C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
D

ri
v
in

g
 L

ic
e
n
c
e
 a

s
 i
ts

 c
o

re
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

fo
r 

IT
T

ra
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 t

e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

o
f 

c
it
iz

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
.

2
5
%

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 t

ra
in

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

a
 s

k
ill

s
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
 2

0
0

2
.

P
a
g
e
 4

4

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 65



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1-
E

C
D

L
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 

R
u
n
s
h
a

w
 C

o
lle

g
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
lle

g
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

C
D

L
.

L
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 S

e
c
u
re

 E
le

c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g
is

te
r

o
n
 l
in

e
 (

L
A

S
E

R
)

A
b
a
n

d
o

n
e
d

b
y
 c

e
n
tr

a
l

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t

W
h
ils

t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

b
a
n
d

o
n

e
d

w
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
o
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

–
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
O

n
lin

e
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

E
le

c
to

rs
(C

O
R

E
)

e
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

im
p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
C

h
o
rl

e
y
 h

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 p

io
n

e
e
re

d
 e

-p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
n
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 f

ro
m

 e
-a

u
c
ti
o
n
s
,

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

ra
ti
o
n
a

lis
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 

O
u
r 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

u
ild

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

o
u
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t

O
u
r 

fl
a
g
s
h
ip

 O
n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
 f

o
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

p
e
n

e
d

in
 M

a
y

2
0
0

3
w

it
h
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

, 
lo

c
a
l 
ta

x
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

b
e

e
n

e
x
p
a

n
d

e
d
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l,
 L

ic
e
n
s
in

g
, 

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

P
la

n
n
in

g
 f

ro
n
t 

lin
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

F
ig

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
o
v
e
r 

8
5
%

 o
f 
o

u
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 d
e
a
lt

w
it
h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o

p
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir

e
n
q

u
ir

y
 d

e
a
lt

w
it
h
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
o
in

t 
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

c
t.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

m
a
rt

 C
a
rd

s
 f

o
r

c
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 t
ra

v
e
l 

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 O

p
in

io
n
 P

o
lli

n
g

“E
le

c
ti
o

n
” 

o
f 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
E

n
v
o

y
 f

o
r 

C
h
o
rl

e
y
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0

0
2

c
a
rr

ie
d

o
u
t 

b
y

O
p
in

io
n
 p

o
ll 

o
n

 t
h
e
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 

P
u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

R
e
g

u
la

r 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
 o

n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t,
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 g

ra
n

ts
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t

w
e

a
re

 a
llo

w
in

g
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 t

h
e

ir
 s

a
y

a
n
d
 l
is

te
n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
.

IE
G

 3
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

F
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
re

v
ie

w
o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
S

e
c
u
re

d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
a
p

it
a
l 
g
ra

n
t 

o
f 

£
2
0
0
,0

0
0

R
e
v
ie

w
a
n

d
 U

p
d
a
te

 I
C

T
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 I

C
T

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

 b
e
tt
e
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
te

le
c
o
m

s
 a

d
d
s

to
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y

W
e
b
 S

it
e
 P

h
a
s
e
 3

 

o
E

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
s
e

rv
ic

e
 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 
fo

r
k
e

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s

o
W

e
b

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 
in

 
p

la
c
e

o
A

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 W
A

I 
L

e
v
e

l 
A

A
 

O
n
 l
in

e
 f

o
rm

s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

lic
e

n
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 j
o
b
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
rm

s
. 

A
ls

o
 o

n
 l
in

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 b

a
la

n
c
e

e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
.

T
h
e
 W

e
b
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 g

iv
e
s
 c

le
a
r 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
w

e
b
 s

it
e
 i
n

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a

l 
p
ri
o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
e
n
s
u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
u
s
e
rs

. 

P
a
g
e
 4

5

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 66



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

-
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

ro
ll 

o
u
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 c
o
re

 c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
to

r.
 C

h
o
rl

e
y

is
w

e
ll 

p
o
s
it
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 t

h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir

e
 i
t.
 A

 P
ro

je
c
t 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

O
ff
ic

e
r 

is
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

o
s
t 

to
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

o
f

th
e
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

-
T

e
le

p
h
o
n

e

-
F

a
c
e

 t
o

 F
a
c
e

-
O

n
 L

in
e

T
ra

n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 £
1
.2

0
 p

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 2

5
p

w
h
ils

t 
o
p
e
n
in

g
 u

p
 2

0
0
 m

o
re

 v
e
n

u
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

p
lu

s
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 

a
n

d
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 g

iv
e
 m

o
re

 c
h
o
ic

e
 t

o
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
 i
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 

ti
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
c
e

s
 t

o
 

s
u
it
 t

h
e
m

. 
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
c
k
-o

ff
ic

e
 v

ia
 a

 b
ro

w
s
e
r.

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 c
a

n
 a

ls
o
 m

a
k
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
 ‘
b
a
s
k
e
t 

‘ 
fa

c
ili

ty
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
e
n
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
w

e
b

s
it
e
s
.

S
h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

F
o
rm

a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 d
e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a

g
e
n

c
y

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 C

R
M

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e

n
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e

a
lis

e
d
.

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
P

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 b
u

ilt
 i
n
 2

0
0

3
. 

T
h
e

T
e
le

p
h
o

n
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 w

e
n

t 
‘li

v
e
’,
 o

n
 s

c
h

e
d
u
le

, 
in

 J
u
n

e
 2

0
0
5

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

Im
a
g
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
a
n
d

w
o

rk
fl
o

w
in

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
V

a
s
t 

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
in

 s
to

ra
g

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

a
c
c
o
m

p
a

n
ie

d
 b

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 e

a
s
ie

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 l
e
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

tu
rn

a
ro

u
n

d
 t

im
e
s
 i
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 c

la
im

s
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 G
IS

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

S
tr

a
te

g
y

a
p

p
ro

v
e
d
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e
t 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0

0
5
. 

G
IS

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 L

L
P

G
 C

u
s
to

d
ia

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 S

y
s
te

m
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

A
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 i
n
 I

C
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
is

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 t

o
 j
o
in

in
g
 u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

o
th

 f
o
r 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

w
h

ils
t 

a
ls

o
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
“e

n
te

r 
o
n

c
e
, 

u
p
d
a
te

m
a
n

y
”.

 S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 f

o
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
w

o
rk

.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
A

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t

w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 m

o
re

 e
a
s
ily

. 
S

u
c
h
 a

n
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h

w
ill

a
ls

o
 b

ri
n
g
 a

b
o
u
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d
 v

e
rs

io
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

 p
re

-r
e
q

u
is

it
e
 f

o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 F

re
e
d
o
m

 o
f 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

.

P
u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

R
e
g

u
la

r 
s
u
rv

e
y
s
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
.

T
a
rg

e
t 

e
S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

a
p

a
b
ili

ty
 =

1
0
0

%
 b

y
3
1
/1

2
/0

5
A

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e

n
t 

ta
rg

e
t.
 

IE
G

4
, 

4
.5

, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

ro
u

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

k
e

y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 2

0
0
5
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

(e
s
d
) 

ta
rg

e
ts

: 
• 

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

r 
1
5

7
 (

B
V

P
I 

1
5
7
) 

• 
P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

• 
C

h
a
n
n

e
l 
T

a
k
e
-u

p
• 

C
h
a
n
g

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t

• 
E

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 G

a
in

s
 

P
a
g
e
 4

6

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 67



In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
0

6
 -

 2
0

0
9

 

V
e
rs

io
n
 0

.1

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

A
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 3

* 
s
e

rv
ic

e
w

it
h
 ‘
E

x
c
e
lle

n
t’
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

N
e

w
 I

n
tr

a
n

e
t 

‘T
h
e
L

o
o

p
’ 
la

u
n
c
h

e
d

C
o
u

n
c
ils

 n
e

w
 I

n
tr

a
n
e
t 

la
u
n
c
h

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

ta
ff
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
.

N
e
tw

o
rk

 e
x
te

n
d
e
d

T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
b
ra

n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 w

id
e
 a

re
a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

w
a

s
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
in

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
5
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
ili

e
n

c
e
.
T

h
is

 f
o
llo

w
e
d

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
3
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s

ro
o
m

s
.

M
o
b
ile

 W
o
rk

in
g

M
o
b
ile

w
o
rk

in
g

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 U

n
it
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

b
e
n

e
fi
ts

. 
W

o
rk

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 t

o
 

b
e
 d

o
n
e
 t

o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
c
k
-o

ff
ic

e
 a

p
p

lic
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

m
a
x
im

u
m

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s

C
o
n
te

n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

U
p
g
ra

d
e

E
n
a
b

le
d

X
H

T
M

L
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t

w
e

b
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l
w

e
b
-s

it
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o

n
a
lit

y
.

O
n
-l
in

e
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

g
e

n
d
a
s
, 

re
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 m

in
u
te

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 C
o
u
n
c
ils

w
e

b
 s

it
e
. 
T

h
e
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
b

a
c
k
-o

ff
ic

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 b

y
 e

-e
n
a

b
lin

g
 a

g
e

n
d
a

c
re

a
ti
o
n
, 

re
p

o
rt

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
.

P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 v

ia
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
. 

X
X

X
X

P
la

n
n

in
g

 P
o

rt
a

l.
 

C
y
b
e
r 

C
a
fé

 o
p

e
n
s

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
p

e
n
e

d
 a

 c
y
b
e
r-

c
a
fé

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
u

a
l
w

o
rk

e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 I
n
tr

a
n
e
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

rn
e
t.
 T

h
is

 f
u
rt

h
e
rs

 t
h
e
 

C
o
u

n
c
ils

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s

a
n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

w
it
h
 n

e
w

te
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
.

L
L
P

G
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

N
L
P

G
 S

ta
tu

s
 1

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d

G
IS

 d
a
ta

s
e
ts

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 M

A
R

IO
R

e
fu

s
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

o
u

n
d
s
 a

n
d

T
re

e
 P

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

’s
 I

n
te

rn
e
t 

b
a
s
e

d
 m

a
p

p
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
.

C
h
o
rl

e
y
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 a

d
d
 d

a
ta

s
e
ts

. 

P
a
g
e
 4

7

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 68



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

7 APPENDIX 2 – GLOSSARY

Back Office Any office which does not have public access – the place where the processes and
information are managed and maintained and casework is carried out

BPR Business Process Re-engineering refers to the fundamental rethinking and radical
redesign of business processes to achieve dramatic improvements in critical, 
contemporary measures of performance, such as cost, quality, service and speed

Broadband A super fast fibre optic network capable of transmitting large amounts of data very 
quickly, typically 10 times as fast as a dial up modem. A broadband connection is
usually permanently connected to the internet and does not require the user to “dial up
“ to connect to the web. 

Browser A software programme which allows the user to “browse” or view the world wide web
such as Internet Explorer or Netscape Navigator

Business Analysis In this context, the examination and analysis of business processes – how services are
delivered to the public

Call Centre A set of management approaches and technologies that are aimed at handling
telephone calls in a structured and consistent manner that meets customers’
expectations.

CESG Communications-Electronics Security Group.
Advises on security issues for the UK Government. The body is the Information
Assurance arm of GCHQ (Government Communications Headquarters - the primary
foreign intelligence gathering body in the UK). 
www.cesg.gov.uk/
www.gchq.gov.uk

Contact Centre The terms "contact centre" and "customer services centre" are used to underline the
breadth of citizen contact that these operations are increasingly handling. A contact
centre could, for instance, deal with both telephone and internet enquiries to the 
authority, as well as personal visitors, effectively combining a One Stop Shop with a
Call Centre 

CRM Citizen or Customer Relationship Management (CRM) refers to the methods,
technology and strategies adopted by an organisation to enable it to effectively and
efficiently administer its interactions with customers

ECDL The European Computer Driving Licence – a Europe wide recognised standard of IT 
Skills accreditation with various stages to suit users at all levels 

eGiF The Electronic Government Interoperability Format – a set of software standards that
are being adopted nationally to ensure that all government and public sector systems
can effectively communicate with each other without the need for expensive interface
development work 

Extranet A private computer network that sits on the world wide web allowing access from 
anywhere in the world subject to user access rights as distinct from a web site which is 
open to all 

FAQ’s Frequently Asked Questions – the questions most commonly asked about a given 
subject

Front Office That part of the organisation which deals directly with customers either by phone or 
face to face

GIS Geographical Information Systems – normally used to describe computer facilities,
which are used to handle data referenced spatially, with the capability to inter-relate 
datasets, to assist in their analysis and the presentation of results

ICT Information and Communication Technologies
IEG Implementing Electronic Government – an annual report by the Council to the Office of 

the Deputy Prime Minister
Internet A world wide network comprising millions of computers the most common components

of which are the world wide web and e-mail
Intranet A private network of information that is internal to the organisation and which utilises

browser technologies
ISB Invest to Save – a funding bid process promulgated by the Cabinet Office and the

Treasury aimed at innovative partnerships across the public sector, now in Round 4 
LASER The Local Authority Secure Electoral Register – a national project aimed at making the

electoral register a nation wide database maintained locally by electoral registration

Version 0.1 Page 48

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 69



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

offices
LEN Lancashire eGovernment Network – a partnership of all Lancashire local authorities

aimed at delivering eGovernment across Lancashire, in particular a Shared Contact
Centre and a Portal

LGOL Local Government On Line – the ODPM eGovernment Programme
MARIO Maps And Related Information On-line – Lancashire County Councils internet based

GIS system.
Middleware Middleware is the enabling technology of Enterprise application integration. It describes

a piece of software that allows two or more software applications to connect together
so that they can exchange data. 

NLPG The National Land and Property Gazetteer – a national project aimed at creating a
nation wide database of property and addressing data which will be created and
managed by local authorities – the ultimate address reference

NWeGG The North West eGovernment Group – a forum comprised of all North West Local
Authorities and other public sector bodies aimed at promoting eGovernment best
practice

One Stop Shop (OSS) One-Stop Shops provide the public with ‘a single face of government’, i.e. one single
point at which the public can be brought into the process of dealing with their local
Council and usually, other agents of government.

Pathfinder A national scheme of accredited local authorities who, by virtue of their Beacon Council
status, are acknowledged experts in the management of change and are pioneering
electronic service delivery methods. There are 25 Pathfinder projects covering many
areas of electronic service delivery. Pathfinders have a duty to disseminate their best
practice and experiences to other authorities. To date Chorley is being mentored by
two Pathfinder Authorities – Brent LBC and Knowsley MBC. We are also learning from 
other Pathfinders on a more informal basis.

Portal A special type of web page(s) with links to and information about areas of specific
interest to the user, frequently customisable to the users preferences

SSCC Partnership A partnership of Lancashire authorities that have implemented a virtual contact centre
solution with contact centres at each authority using the same CRM system and 
connected by a shared network. The authorities taking part are Chorley, Hyndburn,
Burnley, Pendle, Ribble Valley, Rossendale and Lancashire County Council. 

UK On Line The UK Government’s citizen gateway to services provided by the Government and

other public sector bodies electronically – www.ukonline.gov.uk

Version 0.1 Page 49

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 70



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

8 DOCUMENT INFORMATION AND META DATA

8.1 Document Location

This document is only valid on the day it was printed.

8.2 Revision History

Date of this revision:  1st November 2006 

Date of Next revision: Following annual review in November 2007 

Revision
date

Previous
revision
date

Summary of Changes Changes
marked

01/11/06 n/a First issue for consultation

8.3 Approvals 

This document requires the following approvals.

Name Signature Title Date of
Issue

Version

Paul Morris Deputy Chief Executive Final
Draft

Cllr. G. Morgan Executive Member
(Customers)

Final

Strategy Group Per Chief Executive Final

Executive Cabinet Final

8.4 Meta Data

Name Content Scheme

Coverage Chorley, Lancashire, UK

Creator Chorley Borough Council 

Date 2006-11-01

Date.Created 2006-11-01

Date.Issued

Description Strategy for development of information and 
communication technologies within the 
Borough of Chorley 

Version 0.1 Page 50

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 71



Information & Communications Technology Strategy 2006 - 2009 

Language Eng ISO639-
2

Publisher Chorley Borough Council, PR7 1AL 

webmaster@chorley.gov.uk

Status Draft Version 0.01 For open consultation

Subject.Category Council Polices and Plans IPSV

Title ICT Strategy 2006 – 2009 

Version 0.1 Page 51

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 72



 

A
D

M
IN

M
A

S
/O

S
 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
 

 
    

 
   

 
                              

O
V
E
R
V
I
E
W
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
I
N
Y
  

I
M
P
R
O
V
E
M
E
N
T
 P
L
A
N
 

 R
e
v
is

io
n
 H

is
to

ry
 

 
 R

e
v
is

io
n
 

D
a
te

 

P
re

v
io

u
s
 

R
e
v
is

io
n
 

D
a
te

 

  V
e
rs

io
n
 

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

a
n
d
 

E
xe

c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

 

 0
2
/0

3
/0

6
 

0
9
/0

3
/0

6
 

 1
 

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 

0
5
/0

9
/0

6
 

2
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

1
0
/0

1
/0

7
 

3
 

E
xe

c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

1
1
/0

1
/0

7
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 73



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
        

 T
h
is

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 f

o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

 T
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
n
g
s
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
ila

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 f

o
r 

P
u
b
lic

 S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 s

e
lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
t 

a
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 2

0
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
, 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 
S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
. 

 
T

h
e
s
e
 
a
re

a
s
 
a
re

 
th

o
s
e
 
w

h
ic

h
 
th

e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 
b
e
 
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 
it
s
 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 i
ts

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
. 

 T
h
is

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

u
p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

to
 

e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 

fo
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

a
re

 
k
e
p
t 

o
n
 

tr
a
c
k
, 

to
 

h
e
lp

 
d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 W
e
 w

a
n
t 

to
 s

h
a
re

 o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

o
s
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 a

t 
w

w
w

.c
h
o
rl
e

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
  

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 w
e
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 n

e
w

s
p
a
p
e
r,

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

s
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
p
re

s
s
 r

e
le

a
s
e
s
. 

 If
 y

o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g

 t
o
 t

h
e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 I

m
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 o

r 
re

q
u
ir
e
 a

n
y
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t:
 

 S
te

v
e
 P

e
a
rc

e
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll,

 M
a
rk

e
t 
S

tr
e
e
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
, 

P
R

7
 1

D
P

 
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 N

o
. 

0
1
2
5
7
 5

1
5
1
9
6
 

F
a
x
 N

o
. 

0
1
2
5
7
 5

1
5
1
5
0
 

 e
M

a
il:

 s
te

v
e
.p

e
a
rc

e
@

c
h
o
rl
e
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

  

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

J
 W

a
lk

e
r 

E
xe

c
u
ti
v
e
 M

e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
rs

, 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 a

n
d
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

P
 G

o
ld

s
w

o
rt

h
y
, 

E
xe

c
u
ti
v
e
 L

e
a
d
e
r 

 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

D
 E

d
g
e
rl
e
y
 

C
h
a
ir
m

a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 74



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 1
 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1
. 
P

ro
v
id

e
 

‘c
ri

ti
c
a
l 

fr
ie

n
d

’ 
c
h

a
ll
e

n
g

e
 

1
.1

 D
o

e
s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e
 

c
h

a
ll
e

n
g

e
 t

o
 

th
e
 

E
x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

?
 

�
 

S
o
m

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

re
lu

c
ta

n
t 
to

 c
ri

ti
c
is

e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 -

 m
o
re

 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t/
n

e
e

d
 

fo
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

�
 

N
e
e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

�
 

F
e

e
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 b

a
c
k
 

to
 p

u
b
lic

 

�
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o

r 
O

&
S

 

�
 

C
a
ll-

in
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

u
s
e

d
 m

o
re

 

�
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

to
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 

1
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 a

 
re

g
u
la

r 
b

a
s
is

 f
o
r:

 

 
•
 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 

 
•
 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/ 

P
a
n
e
l 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

 
•
 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/ 

P
a
n
e
l 
c
h
a
ir

s
 

 
•
 
S

M
G

 O
ff
ic

e
rs

 

 
•
 
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
e
c
ti
o

n
 

2
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 

q
u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 

n
o
ti
c
e
 t

o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
t 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

1
. 

C
le

a
r 

u
n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d
in

g
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 

              2
. 

M
o
re

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 ‘
c
ri
ti
c
a
l 

fr
ie

n
d
’ 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
0

7
 

               O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

6
 

S
te

v
e
 

P
e
a
rc

e
/S

u
e
 

B
a

x
e
n

d
a
le

 
                  D

o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

 

C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

M
 L

e
e
s
 

                    C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 J
 W

a
lk

e
r 

 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n

c
y
 f

ro
m

 J
u
n

e
 

2
0
0

7
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 

             Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 –

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
g
re

e
d
 o

n
 3

1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

0
6
 

to
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

u
b
lic

 q
u

e
s
ti
o
n
s
/s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 a

t 
v
a
ri
o

u
s
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

   
S

e
e
 I

te
m

 1
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
.2

 H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
v
e
 

a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 

E
x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

?
 

�
 

C
a
ll-

in
 (

u
s
e
d

 o
n
c
e

) 
- 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 

�
 

E
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri

a
te

 
C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
tt
e

n
d
 I

n
q
u
ir

y
 

h
e
a

ri
n

g
s
 

�
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 
O

&
S

 t
o
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

to
p
ic

s
 

   3
. 

A
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
v
it
e

 
p
u
b
lic

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

o
p
ic

s
 

       3
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

   J
u
n

e
 2

0
0
6
 

 

   S
te

v
e
 P

e
a

rc
e
 

 

   C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
 W

a
lk

e
r 

   O
n
-g

o
in

g
 –

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 g

iv
e

n
 i
n
 t
h

e
 C

h
o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 N
e

w
s
, 

lo
c
a
l 
m

e
d
ia

 a
n

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

�
 N

o
n
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 c
a
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 -

 
re

c
e
iv

e
 a

ll 
p

a
p

e
rs

 

�
 R

e
v
is

e
d
  

F
o

rw
a

rd
 

P
la

n
 

�
 T

o
o
lk

it
 

�
 P

ls
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
s
 q

u
a

rt
e
rl

y
 

b
a
s
is

 

�
 N

o
n
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
in

 t
h

e
 

m
a
in

 

 �
 S

h
a
d

o
w

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
p
p

o
in

te
d
 

         �
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 -

 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 g

a
th

e
ri

n
g
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 75



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 2
 

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
.3

 H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

ro
u

ti
n

e
ly

 
c
h

a
ll
e

n
g

e
 t

h
e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
b

u
d

g
e
t?

 

� ���
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

s
h
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 m

o
re

 
s
a

y
 i
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
it
e
m

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 s

ta
rt

 

�
 

O
&

S
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o

 
m

e
e
t 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

to
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 

�
 

M
o
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 

b
u
d

g
e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

�
 

P
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 

O
&

 S
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 

�
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

  

�
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 

m
o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 o
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

4
. 

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

o
f 
d

ra
ft

 p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
b
e
fo

re
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 

a
g
re

e
d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
. 

 5
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

o
f 
b

u
d

g
e
t 

 6
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

o
f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 

 

4
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
p

o
lic

y
 

a
n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 

      5
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
b
u
d

g
e
t 

  6
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

    

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
0
6
 

      F
ro

m
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0

6
 

  D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0

6
 

 

 D
o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

        G
a
ry

 H
a
ll 

    D
o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

 C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
 W

a
lk

e
r 

       C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
D

 E
d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

  C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
D

 E
d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 -

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
g

re
e
d
 o

n
 8

 
S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
5

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll 

d
ra

ft
 p

o
lic

y
/s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

   Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 -

 t
h
e
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/P

a
n
e
ls

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

in
g
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0

0
6
/0

7
 d

u
ri
n
g

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0
0

7
 

 O
n
g

o
in

g
 -

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
D

a
ta

 i
s
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
/P

a
n
e
ls

 o
n
 a

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 b

a
s
is

. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 7
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a
l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0

6
 

 

 D
o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

 C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

D
 E

d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

 O
n
g

o
in

g
 -

 T
h

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 P

a
n

e
l 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e

d
 a

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 i
n

q
u
ir

y
 

in
to

 t
h
e

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h
 

L
a
n

c
a
s
h
ir
e

 C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0

6
. 

 O
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
o

d
ie

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 d

u
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

h
o

rl
e

y
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
(L

S
P

).
 

 

 
 1
.4

 A
re

 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 
h

o
w

 a
re

 t
h

e
y
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
?

 

�
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 
P

l’s
 g

o
 t

o
 O

&
S

 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
/P

a
n

e
ls

 
e
v
e
ry

 q
u
a

rt
e

r 

�
 M

o
n

th
ly

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 

g
o
 t

o
 O

&
S

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

               S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 I

n
q
u
ir

ie
s
 o

n
: 

•
 
F

lo
o

d
in

g
 

•
 
O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o

p
 

•
 
J
u
v
e

n
ile

 n
u
is

a
n
c
e
 -

 
Y

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

•
 
P

a
rk

w
is

e
 

 �
 

C
B

C
 t
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 v

ic
e
 

v
e
rs

a
 

�
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 L

C
C

 

 
A

s
k
 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
/c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v

e
 b

o
d
ie

s
 f
o

r 
to

p
ic

s
/c

o
m

m
e
n

ts
 

�
 

B
ri
n
g
 ‘
e
v
e

ry
o

n
e
’ 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

�
 

L
S

P
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

 a
t 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

 

 

 7
. 

F
o
c
u
s
e

d
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 b
o
d
ie

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 76



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 3
 

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
1
.5

 D
o

e
s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

o
rk

 
e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e
ly

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

E
x
e
c

u
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t?
 

�
 

M
e
e

ti
n

g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 
L
e
a

d
e

r/
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 w

it
h
 

O
&

S
 C

h
a
ir

s
 

�
 

P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 k

e
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 f
o

r 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

•
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g

 o
n
 

th
e
 ‘
re

a
l 

is
s
u
e
s
’/
c
h

a
ir
in

g
 

s
k
ill

s
/O

&
S

 
P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
/R

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 E

x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

S
e
n
io

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

�
 

C
a
p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 

�
 

S
M

G
 t

o
 r

e
fe

r 
p
o
lic

y
 

d
o
c
s
 t

o
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

8
. 

(a
) 

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

h
a
ir

s
 

w
it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 

 
(b

) 
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 c

h
a
ir

s
 

w
it
h
 E

x
e

c
u
ti
v
e
 

L
e
a

d
e

r/
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

  S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 
 S

e
e
 I
te

m
 4

 

 
 

8
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

re
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

 b
e

tw
e

e
n
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

C
h
a
ir

 w
it
h

 L
e

a
d

e
r/

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

F
ro

m
 M

a
y
 

2
0
0

6
 

         

D
o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
P

 G
ol

d
sw

o
rth

y 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 -

  

a
) 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

s
 t

o
 

b
e
 h

e
ld

 e
v
e
ry

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 c

y
c
le

. 

b
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 

b
a
s
is

. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

9
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

/ 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

F
ro

m
 M

a
y
 

2
0
0

6
 

S
te

v
e
 P

e
a

rc
e
/ 

S
h
e
lle

y
 W

ri
g
h
t 

C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
D

 E
d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

O
n
g

o
in

g
 -

 p
u

b
lic

it
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 P

a
rk

w
is

e
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 I

n
q
u
ir

y
 i
n
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

0
6
 

 R
e
g
u
la

r 
p
u

b
lic

it
y
 o

n
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

in
 t
h

e
 C

h
o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

s
. 

 
 

 
 

 

2
. 
R

e
fl

e
c
t 

th
e
 

v
o

ic
e
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
c

e
rn

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c

 a
n

d
 

it
s
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

2
.1

 H
o

w
  
is

 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

in
fo

rm
e

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c

?
 

�
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

h
a
ir

 
p
re

s
e
n

ts
 I

n
q

u
ir

y
 

R
e
p
o

rt
s
 t

o
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

              �
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
t 
fr

o
n

t 
o
f 

re
p
o

rt
 

�
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 

a
n
d

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

�
 A

rt
ic

le
s
 i
n
 

n
e

w
s
p
a

p
e
r 

a
n

d
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

�
 R

e
g
u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 o

n
 I

n
q
u
ir

ie
s
 

�
 

N
e
e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o
re

 
p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 r

e
a
c
ti
v
e
 

�
 

M
o
re

 e
ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

�
 

M
o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

o
n
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 a

n
d

 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

s
 

•
 

R
e
g
u
la

r 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

a
rt

ic
le

s
 i
n

 B
o
ro

u
g
h
 

N
e

w
s
 

�
 

E
n
s
u
re

 w
id

e
s
p
re

a
d

 
d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

s
 

 

9
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 f

o
r 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

in
q
u
ir

ie
s
/a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 77



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 4
 

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
2
.2

 H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

a
k
e

 
it

s
e
lf

 
a
c
c

e
s

s
ib

le
 t

o
 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c

?
 

�
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 
b
e
tw

e
e

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

it
s
 

p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
n
o
n

-e
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 -
 b

e
tt

e
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a

n
d
 

in
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
u
b
lic

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

C
a
p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

�
 

E
n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 I

n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 (

e
g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 P

re
s
s
 

A
rt

ic
le

s
) 

       

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 9

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 9

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
2
.3

 H
o

w
 d

o
e

s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

?
 

�
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n

n
a
ir

e
s
 t
o
 

re
le

v
a
n

t 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 

�
 C

it
iz

e
n
s
 P

a
n

e
l 

�
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

p
u
b
lic

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
o

r 
In

q
u
ir

y
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 

�
 R

e
g
u
la

r 
s
lo

t 
in

 
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

s
 

         �
 P

u
b
lis

h
 a

rt
ic

le
s
 i
n
 

n
e

w
s
p
a

p
e
r 

�
 I
n
fo

rm
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
 o

f 
In

q
u
ir

y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

�
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

o
o
lk

it
 

�
 

C
a
p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

�
 

B
e
tt
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n
 

in
q
u
ir

y
/m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 

�
 

T
im

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 o

n
 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 

�
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

a
tt
e

n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

�
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

o
p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 -

 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

�
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
tt
e

n
d

a
n
c
e
 a

t 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 

    
S

e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 
   

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 78



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 5
 

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3
. 
T

a
k

e
 t

h
e
 

le
a

d
 a

n
d

 o
w

n
 

th
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
 

3
.1

 D
o

e
s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

o
p

e
ra

te
 w

it
h

 
p

o
li

ti
c
a
l 

im
p

a
rt

ia
li

ty
 

�
 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
/m

o
re

  
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 

a
n
d
 

1
0
. 

R
e
v
is

e
/u

p
d
a

te
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

o
o
lk

it
 

  1
0
. 

U
p
d
a

te
d
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d

 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 t

o
o
lk

it
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

c
u
rr

e
n

t 
b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

 

  M
a

y
 2

0
0
7
 

  S
te

v
e
 P

e
a

rc
e
 

  C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
D

 E
d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

  O
n
g

o
in

g
 -

 T
o

o
lk

it
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 M

e
m

b
e
r/

O
ff
ic

e
r 

W
o
rk

in
g
 G

ro
u
p

. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

�
 N

o
n
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 

�
 N

o
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 i
s
 

p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

�
 C

o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 a

m
o
n
g

s
t 

a
ll 

o
n

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

�
 S

m
a
lle

r 
P

a
n
e
ls

 (
1

0
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

) 

�
 C

o
lle

c
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

�
 O

p
p

o
s
it
io

n
 C

h
a
ir

s
 

�
 M

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t 

�
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
o
f 

Is
s
u
e
 

fr
o
m

 E
x
e

c
 f
o

r 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
3
.2

 D
o

e
s
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 h

a
v
e
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

it
s
 o

w
n

 w
o

rk
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
?

 

�
 W

e
 d

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 w

o
rk

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

�
 W

e
 d

e
c
id

e
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 

�
 W

e
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

�
 C

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

c
h

o
o
s
in

g
  

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 I

n
q
u
ir

ie
s
 

�
 

A
b
ili

ty
 t
o

 g
e
t 
th

e
 

c
o
rr

e
c
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

�
 

N
e
e
d

 t
o

 e
x
a
m

in
e
 

th
e
 s

k
ill

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

�
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

o
rg

a
n
iz

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 

1
1
. 

P
u
b
lic

 i
n
v
it
e

d
  
to

 
s
u
b
m

it
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

in
q
u
ir

y
 t

o
p
ic

s
 

 1
2
. 

R
o
lli

n
g

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 w

o
rk

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 

y
e

a
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

/p
a

rt
n

e
rs

/p
u

b
lic

 

[T
o
 b

e
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
] 

1
1
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

a
n
d

 S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

 1
2
. 

Im
p

ro
v
e
d
/c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 

a
n
n

u
a
l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

F
ro

m
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
0

6
 

  F
ro

m
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
0

6
 

S
te

v
e
 P

e
a

rc
e
 

   D
o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

    

C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
D

 E
d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

  C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

 
D

 E
d
g

e
rl
e

y
 

O
n
-g

o
in

g
 -

 P
u

b
lic

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
v
it
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 t
o

p
ic

s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

rt
ic

le
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
o
rl

e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 N

e
w

s
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b
lic

it
y
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 F

o
ru

m
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

  O
n
g

o
in

g
 -

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 r

o
lli

n
g

 w
o

rk
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e
d
 b

y
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 

2
9
/7

/0
6
 -

 T
o
p
ic

s
 a

ll 
b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3
.3

 D
o

 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e

y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
w

o
rt

h
w

h
il

e
 

a
n

d
 f

u
lf

il
li

n
g

 
ro

le
?

 

�
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

�
 M

o
n
it
o

ri
n
g

 o
f 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 I
n
q
u
ir

ie
s
 

�
 M

o
s
t 

M
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

re
 

e
n
th

u
s
ia

s
ti
c
 

�
 

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
e

x
p

e
ri

e
n
c
e
 

�
 

M
o
re

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

- 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 79



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 6
 

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
3
.4

 I
s
 t

h
e
re

 a
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

v
e
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
?

 

�
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 C

h
a
ir
in

g
 

s
k
ill

s
 

�
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n

s
 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 8

 
 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

 
 

 
 

 
4
 M

a
k

e
 a

n
 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
li

v
e
ry

 

4
.1

 H
o

w
 i
s

 t
h

e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

w
o

rk
lo

a
d

 c
o

-
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 i

n
 

to
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ro

c
e
s

s
e

s
?

 

�
 

T
ra

in
in

g
/ 

u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
d

g
e
t 

•
 

n
e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
n

 
p
o
lit

ic
a
l 

•
 

e
a
rl

y
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 o

f 
b
u
d

g
e
ts

 

•
 

e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 a
n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
b
u
d

g
e
t 

a
t 

s
a
m

e
 

ti
m

e
 

�
 

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 r
e
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 

a
lig

n
e
d
 w

h
e

n
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 r
e

c
’s

 
(w

h
e

re
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

m
o
n
e

y
 c

o
m

in
g

 
fr

o
m

) 

�
 

E
n
s
u
re

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

to
p
ic

s
 a

re
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 

  

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 5

 

   

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 5

 

  
S

e
e
 I
te

m
 1

0
 

    

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

0
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

�
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
tt
e

n
d

 a
n

d
 

p
re

s
e
n

t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 

�
 S

u
p
p

o
rt

 f
ro

m
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 

�
 T

o
o
lk

it
 

�
 A

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 I

n
q
u
ir

y
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
y
 t
h

e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

 �
 P

a
n
e
ls

 s
h

a
p

e
d
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 e

g
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 
in

q
u
ir

ie
s
 

�
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

h
a
s
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

�
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 n

o
w

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 

�
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

in
 t
o

p
ic

 s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 

�
 R

e
p
o

rt
s
 a

re
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 o

n
 

a
g
e

n
d

a
s
 b

y
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 

�
 C

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 c
a

n
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

in
q
u
ir

ie
s
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 80



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 A

N
D

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 7
 

 

1
 

2
 

3
 

4
 

5
  

6
 

7
 

8
 

9
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
O

M
 

 

S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 

P
R

IN
C

IP
L

E
 

 
F

O
C

U
S

 
 

E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 W

H
A

T
 

W
E

 D
O

 W
E

L
L

 

 
O

P
P

O
R

T
U

N
IT

IE
S

 
ID

E
N

T
IF

IE
D

 F
O

R
 

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

 

 
A

C
T

IO
N

S
 P

L
A

N
N

E
D

 

 
E

X
P

E
C

T
E

D
 O

U
T

C
O

M
E

S
 

 
B

Y
 W

H
E

N
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

M
e
m

b
e
r 

 
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
4
.2

 W
h

a
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 i

s
 

th
e
re

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 
th

a
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

h
a

s
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t
?

 

�
 

S
e
t 
u

p
 s

m
a
ll 

g
ro

u
p
s
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
is

s
u
e
s
 f
o

r 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

�
 

E
n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
 t

h
e

 
p
u
b
lic

 t
o
 “

c
a
ll-

in
”/

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

�
 

N
e
e
d

 t
o

 r
a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

�
 

O
ff
ic

e
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 t
h

ro
u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a

r 
- 

c
le

a
r 

p
la

n
 a

t 
s
ta

rt
 o

f 
y
e

a
r 

(i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
in

q
u
ir
ie

s
) 

�
 

A
n
n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 t
o

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

 

1
3
. 

A
n
n
u

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

      

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

2
 

1
3
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
. 

M
a

y
 2

0
0
7
 

D
o
n
n

a
 H

a
ll 

C
o
u
n

c
ill

o
r 

J
 W

a
lk

e
r 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 M
a

y
 2

0
0
7
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
e

v
e
n

t 
to

 b
e
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 l
a

te
 2

0
0
7
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

S
e
e
 I
te

m
 1

0
 

 
 

 
 

 
4
.3

 H
o

w
 w

e
ll
 

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

 b
y
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

m
a
n

a
g

e
d

?
 

�
 

L
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a

rn
t 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
In

q
u
ir

ie
s
 

(w
h
a

t 
c
o

u
ld

 w
e
 d

o
 

b
e
tt

e
r?

) 
�
 

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
p
p

ro
v
e
d
 a

s
 P

l 
(S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

�
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
In

q
u
ir

ie
s
 -

 
re

c
s
 e

g
 g

ra
s
s
 

c
u
tt
in

g
, 

O
n

e
 S

to
p
 

S
h
o
p
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n

c
e
 

�
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
p

te
d

 t
h

e
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o

n
s
 

�
 H

a
v
e
 m

o
n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

re
p

o
rt

s
 o

n
 i
n

q
u
ir

y
 

re
c
’s

 (
e
v
e
ry

 s
ix

 
m

o
n
th

s
) 

�
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 o
n

 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

 �
 P

la
n
n
in

g
/s

c
o
p
in

g
 

a
n
d

 t
o

o
lk

it
 g

o
o

d
 

�
 I
n
fo

 r
e

c
e
iv

e
d
 g

o
o
d
 

�
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

s
u
p

p
o
rt

 g
o
o

d
 

�
 D

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e

r 
g

ro
u
p
s
 

�
 D

o
 g

o
 o

n
 s

it
e
 

v
is

it
s
/c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

b
e

s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 81



Agenda Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 
 
 
 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME – 2006/07 
 

 

Function/topic 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

1. Scrutiny Inquiries              

 Council’s performance against the key line of 
enquiry to be assessed by the Audit 
Commission during CPA and Direction of 
Travel. 

OSC     * * * * * *   

 Contact Centre: Efficiencies and Partnership 
with LCC 

CCOSP 
 

 *  * * *  *  *   

 Neighbourhood Working ECOSP  *  * * *  *  *   
2. Holding the Executive to Account              

 Annual Budget Consultation OSC      * * *     

 Provisional full year Performance Indicator OSC          *   

ECOSP     * *    *    Business Plan and Performance Indicator 
Updates CCOSP     * *    *   

 OSC     *  *   *   

 BVPP (Corporate Plan overall performance) OSC     *     *   

 Monitoring of Sickness Absence (6 monthly 
update) 

OSC 
 

    *     * 
 

Budget Scrutiny 
OSC 

CCOSP 
ECOSP 

        
*
* 

*    

3. Policy Development and Review OSC    *         

 Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 
2006/07 

OSC 
 

  *   *   *  
 

 Corporate Improvement Plan 2004-2007 
Update (Corporate Strategy) 

OSC 
 

      *    
 

 

OSC      -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee                        ECOSP      -  Environment and Community 
                                                                                                                     Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
CCOSP       - Corporate and Customer Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 83



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 
MONITORING OF PREVIOUS SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Inquiry 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
J 

 
A

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

 Chorley Markets - Occupancy of Stalls & 
 Associated Matters 

CCOSP 
       *     

 Juvenile Nuisance  ECOSP    *         

 Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley ECOSP          *   

 One-Stop Shop/Contact Centre CCOSP     *     *   

 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit ECOSP       *      

 Parkwise Scheme  CCOSP        *     
 
 
 

 Monitoring of Budget Scrutiny 
Recommendations 

             

 Environmental Services ECOSP      *  *     

 Revenues and Benefits CCOSP      *  *     

 Planning Services ECOSP      *  *     
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 84



 A
D

M
IN

G
E

N
/T

O
O

L
K

IT
/9

1
2
5
2
A

J
S

 

 

R
o

ll
in

g
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 I

n
q

u
ir

ie
s

 t
o

 b
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

O
rd

e
r 

T
o

p
ic

/I
s
s
u

e
 T

it
le

 
D

a
te

 
In

c
lu

d
e
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
S

c
o

re
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

     
1
.  2
.      1
. 

2
.     1
. 

2
.  

 F
u

ll
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 I
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 

 O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

 J
o
b
 E

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 

 T
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
c
ri
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
P

a
n

e
l 

 G
e
rs

h
o
n
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

S
ta

ff
 S

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 

  E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

a
n

e
l 

 In
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
  

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

     

   J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 

   A
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

   C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 85



Agenda Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Forward Plan
	6 Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Strategy
	ICT STRATEGY 2006-09 Draft.pdf

	8 Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan - Update
	10 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme (enclosed)

